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ABOUT THE COMPANY

We are the �irst Company in India to establish an automated plant 
with a BHS corrugator and BOBST FFG, we prioritize quality and 
customer satisfaction above all. Our skilled workforce, advanced 
ERP-controlled operations, and state-of-the-art facility ensure 
precision in every box we produce. Committed to environmental 
conservation, we’ve implemented green technology to minimize our 
impact. We proudly serve some of the market's largest companies, 
driven by our passion for making the best boxes.

LEADER IN THE MANUFACTURING OF CORRUGATED BOXES

MISSION

VISION
To be "20-in-10"

That is to convert 20,000 metric tonnes of 
paper per month in 10 years' time or by 
2027.

To be the most recognized and respected 
brand amongst the consumers of corrugated 
boxes in India
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KEY STRENGTHS

Strategically Located Warehouses 

Highest Capacity 

State of the art facility 

Experienced management and dedicated 
employee base

Sustainable Packaging Solution

1

2

3

5

4

6

7

Our Warehouses are strategically located to cater to demand 
quickly and the goods are either delivered directly to the customer 
or gets delivered to the warehouse of the Company. Where they are 
stored for just in time delivery.

We have the highest capacity plant among other industry players. 
We are the Company in India to have an installed capacity of 5000 
tonnes/ month, within a single facility, and a combined installed 
capacity of 9300 tonnes/ month from all our facilities.

All our processes and system are energized by ERP technology 
which helps in catering the requirements quickly and ef�iciently 
manage the inventory

Our State-of-the-art fully automated bring about a high degree of 
precision in our box making process and also helps in maintain a 
high-quality output while maintaining all the safety measures.

Favourable receivable days and decent inventory & payable 
days leading to better working capital management

The already experienced management guiding the Company give 
them upper hand in operations and also assists in geographical 
expansion and customer presence in target and existing markets.

The recyclability proposition of paper as well as growing environ-
mental consciousness among consumers towards sustainable
packaging is drawing heightened industry attention to entice 
customers which is positively in�luencing the market growth



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 03

MILESTONES

2009

2011

2017

1992

2015

1997
Agarwal Family started a
semi-automatic set up for
manufacturing of corrugated
boxes in the name of Kaushik
Products.

HMK Auto Packs Private
Limited was formed by
Agarwal family to
manufacture
high quality corrugated
boxes and expand its
operation.

Manish Kumar Bothra and Nishant
Bothra commenced manufacturing 
of corrugated boxes in the style of 
partnership �irm named as
Sapthagiri Packaging Industries.

Manish Kumar Gupta entered in
the paper packaging industry and
started manufacturing of
corrugated boxes in the name
of M/s Singla Packaging.

Gupta Family and Bothra
Family joined hand and
incorporated MNM Triplewall
Containers Private Limited.

India's most technologically
advanced & single largest
capacity plant manufacturing
corrugated boxes was installed.

MNM Triplewall Contain-
ers Private limited merged 
with HMK Auto Packs 
Private Limited.
(A powerful combination 
as HMK was a pioneer in 
making corrugated boxes 
for the FMCG segment and 
MNM were pioneers in 
sheet feed model) Crossed 
revenue of Rs. 100 Cr.
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MILESTONES

2020

2021

2018

2022

2019

Unit III (TN) became
a SEDEX approved plant.

Equity shares of the Company entered
the Share market for public dealing on
the Emerge Platform of National Stock
 Exchange of India Limited.

Name of the MNM Triplewall
Containers Private Limited changed
to B&B Triplewall Containers Private
Limited. Subsequently this private
limited converted into public Limited
 B&B Triplewall Containers Limited.

Added 60000 sq feet of
plant area in Unit III (TN)

Unit III (TN) got certi�ied with 
ISO 9001-2015.

Following developments took place 

The Company has established Unit IV in 
Hyderabad, dedicated to the production of 
corrugated boxes

A new subsidiary, B and B Colour Cartons 
Private Limited, has been formed to 
specialize in the manufacturing of mono 
carton boxes.

The Company's shares have been success-
fully migrated from the NSE SME portal to 
the NSE/BSE Main Board.

Unit III, located in Tamil Nadu, has 
received FSC certi�ication.

2023

Unit IV, located in Hyderabad, 
has achieved SEDEX approval, 
obtained ISO 9001:2015 
certi�ication, and received FSC 
certi�ication.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta Chairman & Managing Director
2.Mr. Ravi Agarwal Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
3.Mr. Manish Bothra Executive Director
4.Mr. Alok Agarwal Executive Director
5.Mr. Arun Sarma Independent Director
6.Mr. Vikram Jain Independent Director
7.Mr.

Ms.
Sushil R Bhatia Independent Director

8. Antoinette Ryan Dsouza Independent Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1.Mr. Nishant Bothra Chief Technical Officer
2.Mr. Amit Agarwal Chief Executive Officer
3.Mr. Sidharth Agarwal Chief Operating Officer

STATUTORY AUDITORS SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pary & Co. SCS AND CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants Practicing Company Secretaries
9005, World Trade Center, Ring Road,
Surat – 395002, Gujarat.

415, Pushpam Complex, Near Bank of Baroda
Opp. Sima Hall, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS CORPORATE OFFICE

Sy. No. 263/2/3, Marsur Madivala, First Floor, 1090/N, Gayathri Towers, 18th Cross,
Kasaba Hobli Anekal Taluk HSR Layout, Sector-3, Bangalore – 560102.
Bangalore KA 562106 IN

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBER

Ms. Jagrati Varshney Mr. Arun Sarma
Mr. Sushil R. Bhatia

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER Mr. Antoinette Dsouza Ryan

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Unit no. 9 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.
J.R. Boricha marg Mr. Arun Sarma
Lower Parel (E) Mr. Alok Agarwal
Mumbai 400 011 Mr. Manish Bothra

AUDIT COMMITTEE CSR COMMITTEE

Mr. Vikram Jain Mr.  Sushil R. Bhatia
Mr. Sushil R. Bhatia Mr. Manish Bothra
Mr. Ravi Agarwal Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta

WAREHOUSES BANKERS

Bangalore IndusInd Bank Limited
Bajaj Finance Limited
HDFC Bank Limited

Mysore
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OUR INFRASTRUCTURE
MANUFACTURING UNIT

UNIT 1

UNIT 4

UNIT 3

Current Capacity (MT 
per month)

Capacity 
Utilized

Utilization 
Rate

Infrastructure Facility 
Coverage (Sq. FL)

Combined Capacity 9,300 6,795 73% 4,24,000
Unit 1 1,800 1,334 74% 84,000
Unit 3 5,000 4,616 92% 2,30,000
Unit 4 2,500 845 34% 1,10,000
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OUR PRODUCTS

3. BINS

10. LARGE SHIPPERS

Bins
Specialized container that is

used for storing items on

racks.

4. REGULAR SLOTTED
CONTAINERS

5. T FOLDER

6. VARIABLE DEPTH

7. I FOLDER

8. FITMENT

9. SELF-LOCKING BOX

A1
A self-locking box, that does

not utilize glue or undergo

stitching and is specially

designed for Flipkart and is

used to pack mobile phones

and several other products.

Regular slotted
container

where the top and flaps meet

at the center.

7 Ply Boards

Also known as Triplewal, B&B

are amongst the few

manufacturers in India that

produce these sturdy and

spacious boxes and boards.

5 Ply Boards

These highly resistant boxes

are our specialty and we

manufacture them primarily

for the food and beverage

industry.

3 Ply Boards

The most commonly used

boxes that are cost effective

and are usually used to pack

light-weight materials.
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OUR CLIENTS
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(Figures in INR CR)
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

We at B&B Triplewall 
Containers Limited are 
committed to the 
environment . We adhere to 
the best practices at an 
international level.

We have installed Green 
technology to minimize 
environmental damage as 
environmental protection is 
of prime importance to us.

WE ARE A ZERO DISCHARGE COMPANY

Our Closed Loop Steam
Condensate recovery system
saves 3 Mn water every year.

Our specialised
Starch Kitchen reuses
water for making fresh glue.

We recycle waste
generated while
making corrugated boxes.

1 2

3
Our Company has installed solar
modules for generating green energy to
reduce Co2.

4
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Dear Shareholders,

Thank you for your continued confidence in us.

I'm pleased to share that despite the tough
market conditions and subdued client
sentiments, in the Financial Year ending March
31, 2024, your Company has achieved a
remarkable milestone of Rs. 37,451.51 Lakhs in
revenue, marking an exceptional year for us.

The trust of our clients and the dedication of our
employees helped us achieve extraordinary
results.

We pivoted our attention to the new needs of
our clients, workplace transformation, cost
efficiency and automation, and today, we see our
pipeline expanding in these areas. we are also
seeing a move from several of our clients to trust
us with greater responsibilities and consolidate
their work with us. We look forward to
continuing to build on the trust of our clients in
these areas.

We see stability and expansion in our work. We
remain extremely focused on the needs of our
clients in this environment and even more ready
to expand our support of our clients.

I want to especially thank our leadership team for demonstrating incredible ability to execute
throughout the Financial Year and for their stellar performance and real test of resilience under a
difficult situation in the past.

In addition, I want to thank our Board members for their unwavering support and personal guidance
and coaching during the year.

Looking ahead, I am optimistic of the opportunities of the work we are doing for our clients.

With best regards,

Manish Kumar Gupta
Chairman & Managing Director

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
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Form No. MR-3  
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of  

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members, 
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited, 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (CIN: 
L21015KA2011PLC060106) (here-in-after called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our veri�ication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns �iled and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its of�icers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the �inancial year ended on March 31, 2024 (“the audit 
period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns �iled and other records maintained 
by the Company for the �inancial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under; 

 
iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
borrowings. ; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (to the extent applicable); 

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Bene�its and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

Annexure-E
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(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 
vi. The Company has identi�ied following laws applicable speci�ically to the Company: 

 
1. The Shop & Establishment Act, 1954 and rules 
2. The Factories Act, 1948 
3. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 
4. The Food Safety and Standards Act 2006 
5. The Standards of Weights and Measures Act, 1985 
6. Local/Municipality Laws 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on the meetings of 
the Board of Directors and general meetings. 

 
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 
We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable �inancial laws, like direct and indirect 
tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory �inancial audit and other designated 
professionals.  
 
During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, except following points: 
 

1. All e-forms have been delayed �iled by the Company with the Registrar of Companies,  

2. Non-Appointment of Compliance Of�icer from January 21, 2023 till June 24, 2024 Under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Company has appointed Mr. Manish 
Kumar Gupta, Managing Director as a Compliance Of�icer for Interim period, but as per Regulation 6 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entity shall 
appoint a quali�ied company secretary as the compliance of�icer and Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta is not 
a quali�ied company secretary. 

The company has appointed quali�ied Company Secretary on June 24, 2024. 

3. NSE has sought clari�ication from Company under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and company has submitted the clari�ication to Stock 
exchange. 

 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clari�ications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
As per the Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board and 
Committees thereof were carried through with requisite majority.  
 
We further report that based on the review of the compliance reports/certi�icates of the Company Secretary 
which were taken on record by the Board of Directors, there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period, there was no event / action having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 
 
Note: This report is based on information, documents, and material etc., seen/veri�ied/made available to us. 
Further, this report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure -1’ and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
 
 

For SCS AND CO. LLP 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
 
 
CS Abhishek Chhajed 
Partner 
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131 
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700 
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: 14.08.2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 
UDIN: F011334F000978124 
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Annexure -1 

To 
The Members, 
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited, 
 
 
Our report of even date to be read along with this letter: 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veri�ication was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are re�lected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not veri�ied the correctness and appropriateness of �inancial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of SEBI 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the veri�ication of procedures on 
test basis. 
 

6. This Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the ef�icacy and effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 
 

For SCS AND CO. LLP 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
 
 
CS Abhishek Chhajed 
Partner 
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131 
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700 
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: 14.08.2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 
UDIN: F011334F000978124 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Members,
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited
CIN: L21015KA2011PLC060106
Sy. No. 263/2/3, Marsur Madivala,
Kasaba Hobli Anekal, Taluk,
Bangalore – 562106,
Karnataka, India

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of B&B Triplewall Containers Limited having CIN: L21015KA2011PLC060106 and having registered office
at SY. NO. 263/2/3, Marsur Madivala, Kasaba Hobli Anekal Taluk, Bangalore – 562106, Karnataka
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in
Company

1 Mr. Ravi Agarwal 00636684 01/03/2016
2 Mr. Alok Agarwal 00636966 01/03/2016
3 Mr. Vikram Bheemraj Jain 01928117 07/07/2018
4 Mr. Sushil Radhakrishnan Bhatia 03108078 11/02/2019
5 Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta 03568502 23/08/2011
6 Mr. Arun Sarma 06482685 07/07/2018
7 Mr. Manish Bothra 07153582 01/04/2015
8 Ms. Antoinette Ryan 08449024 30/05/2019

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SCS AND CO. LLP
Company Secretaries

CS Abhishek Chhajed Dated: 20.08.2024
Partner Place: Ahmedabad
FCS: 11334 UDIN: F011334F001006537
COP: 15131
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022
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Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Members,
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited
CIN: L21015KA2011PLC060106
Sy. No. 263/2/3, Marsur Madivala,
Kasaba Hobli Anekal, Taluk,
Bangalore – 562106,
Karnataka, India.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by B&B Triplewall
Containers Limited (‘the Company’) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as stipulated
in Para E of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, pursuant
to the Listing Agreement of the Company with stock exchange.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examinations have been limited to the procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For SCS AND CO. LLP
Company Secretaries

CS Abhishek Chhajed Dated: 20.08.2024
Partner Place: Ahmedabad
FCS: 11334 UDIN: F011334F001006834
COP: 15131
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. 
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the standalone financial 
statements including material accounting policy information and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial 
statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") 
and other Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its Profit, total comprehensive 
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI”) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 
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Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone financial 
statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.  

 

A) Provisions for taxation, litigation, and other significant provisions 

 Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make 
judgements and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range 
of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer pricing arrangements, claims, 
general legal proceedings, environmental issues, and other eventualities arising in 
the regular course of business. 

 The key judgement lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ 
from the future obligations. By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes 
many variables. Additionally, depending on timing, there is a risk that costs could 
be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed. 

How the matter was addressed in Our audit procedures included: 

 We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions. 

 We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in 
light of the nature of the exposures, applicable regulations, and related 
correspondence with the authorities. 

  We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by 
management which impacted their estimate of the provisions required, considering 
judgements previously made by the authorities in the relevant jurisdictions or any 
relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors and assessing whether there 
was an indication of management bias. 

 We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the 
Company’s internal tax and legal team. 

 We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to 
accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared 
with the outcome. 
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B)  Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims 

 The Company is periodically subject to challenges / scrutiny on range of 
matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, and transfer pricing arrangements. 

 Further, potential exposures may also arise from general legal proceedings, 
environmental issues etc. in the normal course of business. 

 Assessment of contingent liabilities disclosure requires Management to make 
judgements and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures. Whether the 
liability is inherently uncertain, the amounts involved are potentially significant 
and the application of accounting standards to determine the amount, if any, to be 
provided as liability, is inherently subjective. 

 

How the matter was addressed in our audit procedures included: 

 We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recording and re-
assessment of contingent liabilities. 

 We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material contingent 
liabilities in light of the nature of exposures, applicable regulations, and related 
correspondence with the authorities. 

 We discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of significant 
litigation and claims with the Company’s internal legal team including their views 
on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim and the magnitude of potential 
exposure and sighted any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors. 

 We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made. 

 We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the 
Company’s internal tax and legal team. 

 We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to 
accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared 
with the outcome. 

 

Information Other than the standalone financial statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does 
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material 
statement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Managements and Board of Directors Responsibility for the standalone financial 
statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these  standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the  financial position,  financial 
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
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March 31,2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is 
disqualified as on March 31,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the auditor’s report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and same has been 
transferred accordingly. 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have 
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in 
compliance with sec 123 of the companies act 2013. 

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course 
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give 
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order. 

 

 

                                                                                         

                                                                               

                                                                                         For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                               Chartered Accountants  

                                                                  Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                 Partner 

                                                                                 Membership No: 106109 

                                                        UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

   

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024  

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B&B 
TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED ("the company”) as of March 31, 2024, 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
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we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  standalone financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the  standalone financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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Annexure “B” to the independent Auditors Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date) 

i.  In respect of its Property Plant and Equipment, Intangibles: 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, 

plant and equipment. 

(b)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars of     intangibles assets. 

(c) As stated to us, property, plant and equipment has been physically 

verified by the management at reasonable intervals; and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(d) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties 

where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 

executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial 

statements are held in the name of the company, 

(e) As per information provided to us the Company has not revalued its 

Property, Plant and Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or 

intangible asset or both during the year. 

(f) As stated to us no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 

against the company for holding any benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 

made thereunder.  

ii. In respect of its inventory: 

(a)  As informed to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. The frequency of such verification is 
reasonable, and procedures and coverage followed by the management is 
appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification 
between the physical stock and the book records. 

(b)  On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore 
from banks on the security of the current assets.  The quarterly returns or 
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statements filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are 
not in agreement with the books of account of the Company, and details 
of variances and reasons for such variances are disclosed in the note 
No. 44 of the standalone financial statements. 

iii. In Respect of Investments, Guarantee and Security or Loans and Advances 
given by the Company 

(a) During the year the company has granted loan or advance in the nature of loan 
to subsidiary company the details are provided below: 

 

(b) In our opinion, the loan and advance in the nature of loan granted during 

the year are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

(c) In respect of the loan or advance in the nature of loan granted the schedule 

of repayment is not stipulated as the loan in repayable on demand. 

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the 

audit procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, 

there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet 

date. 

(e) No loans granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year, 

that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 

overdue of existing loans given to the same parties  

 

 

 

 

Particulars Amount In 

Lakhs

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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(f) The above specified loan or advance in the nature of loan granted is 

repayable on demand, the details are provided below:  

Nature Of 
Relationship 

Amount of loan or 
advance in the 
nature of loan 
outstanding 

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 

the nature of loans 

Subsidiary 
Company                            513.68  91.52% 

iv. Loan to directors 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not given loans, made investments, given guarantees, and provided 
securities which are covered by the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

v. Deposits 

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any 
unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 
3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. No order has been passed by 
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India 
or any Court or any other Tribunal for contravention of these sections or any other 
relevant provision(s) of the Act and the relevant rules. 

vi. Cost Records 

According to the information and explanations provided to us and as represented 
by the management, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified for 
the company by the Central Govt., under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act 
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Hence, 
the reporting requirements under clause(vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 

vii. Statutory Dues 
(a) According to the record of the company, undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, 
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other Statutory dues to 
the appropriate authorities, have generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us 
there were no outstanding statutory dues as on March 31, 2023, for a period of more 
than six months from the date they become payable. 
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(b) There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax, service tax, goods 
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise which have not been deposited 
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the following: 

 

Sr. No Name of the Statue Nature of Dues 
Forum Where 

dispute is 
pending 

Due 
Amount In 

lakhs 

1 Income Tax Act, 1961 
Income Tax and 
Interest on Income 
Tax 

 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 

(Appeals)              45.83  

2 Income Tax Act, 1961 
Income Tax and 
Interest on Income 
Tax 

High Court of 
Karnataka            100.49  

viii.  Unrecorded Income 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions which were 
not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), 
as such reporting under this clause does not arise. 

ix. Repayment of Borrowings 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial 
institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture holders. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the company term 
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

(e) The company has not raised any money from any person or entity for the 
account of or to pay the obligations of its associates, subsidiaries, or joint ventures, 
hence the reporting under this clause does not arise. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us the company the 
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies. 

x. Funds raised and utilization 

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company had not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public 
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offer (including debt instruments) during the current financial year as such 
reporting under this clause and sub clause does not arise. 

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under this sub clause Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xi. Reporting of Fraud and Whistleblower complaints 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the 
audit period. 

xii. Nidhi Company 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. Compliance of transaction with Related Parties 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

xiv.  Internal Audit 

(a) The company have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued 
to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures. 

xv. Non-Cash Transaction with Directors 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi.  Register under RBI Act 1934 

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
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Reserve Bank of India Act, 193. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as 
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvii. Cash Losses 

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. Resignation of Statutory Auditors 

There has been no resignation of auditor during the reporting period as such 
reporting under this clause does not arise. 

xix.  Material Uncertainty on Meeting Liabilities 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the standalone financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Standalone Balance Sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the Standalone Balance Sheet date. 

xx. Transfer of Fund Specified under schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) on 
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII 
to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable for the year. 

(b) The Company was obliged to spend Rs. 51,73,737/- under Sec 135 of the Companies 
act, out of which the entity has incurred CSR expenditure of Rs.2,17,635/- during 
the financial year, the amount of Rs.49,56,102/- remaining un spent under Sub- 
section (5) of section 135 of the Companies act, is in relation to ongoing project, the 
unspent amount has been transferred to special account in compliance with the 
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said act. 
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xxi. Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in CARO in 
consolidated financials. 

The reporting under this clause is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included 
in respect of said clause under this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                      Chartered Accountants  

                                                                                    Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

    Rakesh Kumar Jain 

    Partner 

      Membership No: 106109 

                                                                UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                             

 

                                                          

                                                                                      For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                 Chartered Accountants  

                                                                               Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                  Rakesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                  Partner 

                                                                                  Membership No: 106109 

                                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561 

  

Place: Surat 

Date: 30/05/2024 
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(₹ in lakhs)

Note 
No. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

I ASSETS
Non Current Assets
 a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4         5729.30 5806.39
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4         14985.67 5372.98
(c) Investment Property 5         71.01 75.82
(d) Other Intangible Assets 4         35.73 40.55
(e) Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 6         70.00 70.00
    (ii) Other Financial Assets 7         177.77 141.30
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8         18.59
(g) Other Non Current Assets 9         722.44 2330.28
Total Non Current Assets 21,810.51                          13,837.32                              

Current Assets
a) Inventories 10       5075.08 6031.11
b) Financial Assets
    i) Trade receivables 11       7670.76 5770.25
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12       11.31 5.12
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 13       44.12 46.53
   iv) Loans 14       513.68
   v) Other Financial Assets 15       47.57 37.59
c) Other Current Assets 16       338.58 788.15
Total Current Assets 13,701.10                          12,678.75                              

TOTAL - ASSETS 35,511.61                          26,516.07                              

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 17       2051.12 2051.12
b)  Other Equity 18       10074.06 8365.63

Total Equity 12,125.19                          10,416.76                              

2) LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 19       11,468.72                          7492.57
    ia) Lease Liabilities 20       32.84                                 30.75
b) Provisions 21       24.72                                 13.48
c ) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 22       15.05
d) Other Non Current Liabilities 23       3.86 5.78

Total Non Current Liabilities 11,530.13                          7,557.63                                

Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 24       6505.38 4759.05
   ii) Trade Payables 25       

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise & small enterprise 2124.17 2.11

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small enterprises 1976.64 3240.03

   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 26       0.82 0.82
b) Other Current Liabilities 27       1105.10 465.61
c) Current Tax  Liabilities (Net) 28       144.19 74.06

Total Current liabilities 11,856.30                          8,541.68                                
     Total Liabilities 23,386.42                          16,099.31                              

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,511.61                          26,516.07                              
Material Accounting Policy Information 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED For PARY & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

As per our report of even date 

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Standalone Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2024

Particulars

Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024
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(₹ in lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

I Revenue from operations 29     37451.51 33684.36
II Other Income 30     102.80 95.78

III Total Revenue (I +II) 37,554.31                       33,780.15                      

IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 31     26730.18 25042.55
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-
progress 32     

112.16 (208.54)

Employee benefits expense 33     2521.62 2007.32
Finance costs 34     598.17 625.52
Depreciation and amortization expense 4       912.18 898.07
Other expenses 35     4094.46 3010.91

Total Expenses 34,968.76                        31,375.83                       
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 2,585.55                          2,404.31                         
VI Exceptional items

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI) 2,585.55                         2,404.31                        
VIII Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 22 703.73                             651.54
(2) Deferred tax 22 (34.99)                             (40.05)
(3) Prior Period tax (3.48)                               -                                  

Total tax expense 665.25                            611.49                           
IX Profit for the period (VII - VIII) 1,920.29                         1,792.82                        

X Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

   (a) Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 36 (5.39) 4.53

      (b) Income tax on (a) above 36 (1.36)                               1.37
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                   -                                  

Total - Other comprehensive income (6.75)                               5.90                               

XI Total comprehensive income for the year  [(IX)+(X)] 1,913.54                         1,798.72                        

XII Earning per equity share of Rs 10 each
(1) Basic 37 9.36                                 8.74                                
(2) Diluted 37 9.36                                 8.74                                

Material Accounting Policy Information 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

For PARY & CO.,
As per our report of even date 

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Partner

Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024



(₹ in lakhs)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) after tax 1,920.29                     1,811.18                       
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation / Amortization 912.18                        898.07                          
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets -                                
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (6.78)                           (8.46)                             
Interest Expenses 598.17                        625.52                          
Rental Income (64.47)                         (61.49)                           
Interest Income (21.64)                         (5.19)                             
Provision for Income Tax 666.61                        611.49                          
Other Comprehensive Income (6.75)                           5.90                              

Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,997.61                     3,877.02                       
Movements in working Capital :
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 858.67                        721.07                          
(Decrease) / Increase Other Financial liabilities -                              (0.41)                             
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities 639.49                        (90.50)                           
(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Provisions 11.24                          (6.25)                             
(Decrease) / Increase in Lease Liability 2.09                            1.96                              
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Non current liabilities (1.93)                           (1.93)                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non-current assets 1,607.83                     (1,443.63)                      
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial assets (36.47)                         7.93                              
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 956.03                        (993.73)                         
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables (1,900.51)                    (699.00)                         
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Bank balances 2.41                            (7.90)                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial assets (9.98)                           (15.52)                           
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current assets 449.57                        (255.89)                         
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations 6,576.05                     1,093.22                       
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 630.12                        766.85                          
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities(A) 5,945.93                     326.37                          

Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (10,439.52)                  (5,978.35)                      
Investment in subsidiary -                              (70.00)                           
Loan to Subsidiary (513.68)                       -                                
Sale of Fixed Assets 8.15                            83.61                            
Interest Income 21.64                          5.19                              
Rental Income 64.47                          61.49                            
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (10,858.94)                  (5,898.06)                      

Cash Flows from financing activities
Increase (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 3,976.15                     4,851.46                       
Increase (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings 1,746.33                     1,549.83                       
Dividend paid (205.11)                       (205.11)                         
Interest Expense (598.17)                       (625.52)                         
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C ) 4,919.20                     5,570.65                       

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 6.18                            (1.03)                             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5.12                            6.16                              
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 11.31                          5.12                              

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 11.21                          5.03                              
With Banks 0.10                            0.10                              
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 11.31                          5.12                              

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684 Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

Place : Bangalore Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024 Date : 30 May 2024

For PARY & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

As per our report of even date 



A . Equity Share Capital (₹ in lakhs)
 No. of shares Amount

205.11                  2,051.12                  
-                        -                           

205.11                  2,051.12                  
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 -                        -                           

205.11                  2,051.12                  

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of 
OCI  Total Equity 

-                                   4,712.07                    2,086.15                    (7.30)                    6,790.93                 
-                                   1,792.82                    -                             -                       1,792.82                 

Prior Period Errors (18.90)                        (18.90)                     
-                                   -                             -                             -                       -                          
-                                   -                             -                             5.90                     5.90                        
-                                   (205.11)                      -                             -                       
-                                   1,568.81                    -                             5.90                     1,574.71                 

-                                   6,280.88                    2,086.15                    (1.39)                    8,365.63                 

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of 
OCI  Total Equity 

-                                   6,280.88                    2,086.15                    (1.39)                    8,365.63                 
-                                   1,920.29                    -                             -                       1,920.29                 

Prior Period Errors -                             -                             -                       -                          
Transfer to General Reserve -                                   -                             -                             -                       -                          

-                                   -                             -                             (6.75)                    (6.75)                       
Dividend Paid for 22-23 -                                   (205.11)                      -                             -                       (205.11)                   

-                                   1,715.18                     -                              (6.75)                    1,708.43                  
-                                   7,996.06                     2,086.15                     (8.14)                    10,074.06                

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
-                                                                                                         

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 007288C

As per our report of even date 

For PARY & CO.,

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Partner

Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2024

Balance as on 01.04.2022
Profit for the year 

Transferred to General Reserve
Other comprehensive income
Dividend Paid for 21-22
 Total Comprehensive income for the year 

Balance as on 31.03.2023

 Particulars 

Balance as on 01.04.2023
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Particulars

Standalone Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

                                   Particulars
Balance as on 01.04.2022
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023
Balance as on 01.04.2023

Balance as on 31.03.2024

B. Other equity



B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees(in lakhs), unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited  is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its registered office 
and principal place of business are situated at SY.NO.263/2/3, Marsur Madivala, Kasaba Hobli, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru-
562106. The Principal activities of the company are manufacture and sale of corrugated boards & boxes.

2 Basis Of Preparation And Measurement
2.1 Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly 
applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the 
time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

 The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the financial 
statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates (the ‘functional currency’).

2.3 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are 
measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value 
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date.
 

2.4 Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS 
requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and 
liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income 
and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of investments, 
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair value measurement of financial 
instruments, these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition, 
employee benefits and provisions and contingent liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies.

Impairment of Financial assets
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is 
indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. 



2.5 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new accounting standards or amendments to the existing accounting 
standards. There is no such notification has been published from 01 April, 2024.

3 Material Accounting Policy Information
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. 
Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless 
otherwise indicated.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and 
impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period 
in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as 
“Capital work-in-progress”.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written-down-value method based on estimated useful life prescribed 
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction 
and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted  prospectively, if appropriate.

3.2 Investment Property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under 
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost 
model. The cost of Investment property includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

3.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the 
company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. The same are 
amortised over the expected duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.4 Impairment of Non-financial assets - Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does 
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Investments
Non current investments include Investments in subisidiary and these are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27”.

3.6 Inventories 
Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stores & Spares, Tools valued at the lower of cost or 
net realisable value (except scrap/waste which are value at net realisable value).
The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.



3.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria described below also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when control of goods being sold is transferred to customer and where there 
are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are considered as fulfilled in accordance 
with the terms agreed with the respective customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on transaction price excluding estimates of variable consideration that is 
allocated to performance obligations. Sales as disclosed, are exclusive of Goods and Services Tax.

The company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. 
The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes 
collected on behalf of government). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed 
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.
The transaction price is allocated by the company to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of 
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods to the customer.

Sale of services
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.
Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income
Rental income from investment properties s is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

3.8 Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. 
Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related 
to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is 
included in Other Income.

Current income taxes
Current income tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates 
for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years.
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid 
and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where there is an intention to settle the asset and the 
liability on a net basis. 

Deferred income taxes
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the orresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset 
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority.

3.9 Leases
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as 
an expense in line with the contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership to the lessee.

“Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to 
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the 
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend 
or terminate the contract will be exercised.  Accordingly, it recognises the Right of use asset as well as Lease obligations 
considering the lease agreement”



4.0 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of 
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 
is deducted from the borrowing  costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.10 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & 
loss.

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of  past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

3.12 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non - cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, 
financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.13 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, 
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

3.14 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & 
loss.

3.14 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, superannuation 
scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made 
as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain 
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond 
the monthly  contributions.

Defined benefit plans
The Company provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, and compensated absences, in 
respect of certain employees. All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance 
Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Company’s net 
obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 



For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the 
cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as 
past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss). The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset is charged or credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  Any changes in the liabilities over the 
year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in 
‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. 

A. Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases,
the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified
and measured at - Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. In case of Financial assets which
are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are
subsequently classified and measued at:
 - amortised cost 
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
 - fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

[a] Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
[b] Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
income through the expected life of financial instrument.
[c] Debt Instruments
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
[i] Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment,
if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[ii] Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[iii] Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



[d] Equity Instruments:
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company
may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.
The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is
recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such
instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised
in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income
on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Asset
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the
following:
i. Trade receivables
ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance.
In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount
equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an
amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months
from the reporting date.
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and
is adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are updated.
ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

B. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these
liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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Note: 4
4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land Building Plant and equipment Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Office Equipment Electric Installations Computer Equipment Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 818.06                                2,436.60                                     7,524.27                                   72.61                                        116.12                          69.57                         465.99                            74.40                                 11,577.62                    
Additions During the year 32.56                                          579.85                                      1.36                                          102.23                          8.50                           95.98                              5.12                                   825.61                          
Deletions during the year (11.25)                                       (0.60)                             (11.85)                          
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 818.06                                2,469.17                                     8,092.87                                   73.97                                        217.75                          78.07                         561.98                            79.52                                 12,391.38                    

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                                      (1,000.72)                                    (4,272.10)                                  (49.53)                                      (42.69)                           (59.81)                        (290.99)                          (55.39)                                (5,771.23)                     
Current Year Depreciation -                                      (138.97)                                       (637.64)                                     (6.11)                                        (35.63)                           (5.39)                          (66.18)                             (11.40)                                (901.33)                        
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 9.95                                          -                                            0.53                              10.48                            
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2024 -                                      (1,139.69)                                    (4,899.79)                                  (55.64)                                      (77.80)                           (65.20)                        (357.18)                          (66.79)                                (6,662.08)                     

Net Block as on April 1,2023 818.06                                1,435.88                                     3,252.17                                   23.08                                        73.43                            9.76                           175.00                            19.01                                 5,806.39                      
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 818.06                                1,329.47                                     3,193.09                                   18.33                                        139.96                          12.87                         204.80                            12.73                                 5,729.30                      

Particulars Land Building Plant and equipment Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Office Equipment Electric Installations Computer Equipment Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 818.06                                2,364.58                                     6,571.54                                   63.29                                        48.61                            65.22                         339.80                            52.74                                 10,323.84                    
Additions During the Financial Year -                                      72.02                                          1,027.88                                   9.32                                          67.51                            4.35                           126.19                            21.65                                 1,328.93                      
Deletions during the financial year -                                      -                                              (75.15)                                       -                                            -                                -                             -                                  -                                     (75.15)                          
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 818.06                                2,436.60                                     7,524.27                                   72.61                                        116.12                          69.57                         465.99                            74.40                                 11,577.62                    

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 -                                      (853.80)                                       (3,680.96)                                  (43.70)                                      (29.77)                           (53.46)                        (242.84)                          (46.95)                                (4,951.49)                     
Current Year Depreciation -                                      (146.92)                                       (656.58)                                     (5.83)                                        (12.92)                           (6.34)                          (48.15)                             (8.44)                                  (885.18)                        
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 65.44                                        65.44                            
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 -                                      (1,000.72)                                    (4,272.10)                                  (49.53)                                      (42.69)                           (59.81)                        (290.99)                          (55.39)                                (5,771.23)                     

Net Block as on April 1,2022 818.06                                1,510.78                                     2,890.57                                   19.59                                        18.84                            11.76                         96.96                              5.79                                   5,372.35                      
Net Block as on March 31,2023 818.06                                1,435.88                                     3,252.17                                   23.08                                        73.43                            9.76                           175.00                            19.01                                 5,806.39                      

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the Period ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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4.2         (b) Capital Work in Progress

Particulars
 CWIP- Plant & 
Machinery 

 CWIP- Building 
Development 

 CWIP- Electrical 
Installation 

 CWIP - Furniture and 
Fixtures 

 CWIP - Office 
Equipment  CWIP - Vehicles 

 CWIP - Computer 
Equipment  Total 

Project Cost as on April 1, 2023 3,804.27                            1,481.17                                    84.76                                       0.00                                         -                               -                            2.77                               5,372.98                           
Additions During the year 6,893.26                            1,435.71                                    1,393.00                                  5.10                                         1.34                             55.43                         7.26                               9,791.11                           
Capitalized during the year (172.84)                              (0.09)                                          (5.50)                                        -                                          -                               -                            -                                 (178.43)                             
Project Cost as on March 31, 2024 10,524.70                          2,916.79                                    1,472.26                                  5.11                                         1.34                             55.43                         10.04                             14,985.67                         

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

Less than
1 year 1-2 years

2-3
years

More than 3
years Total

Projects in progress 9,612.69                             5,372.98                                     -                                            -                                           14,985.67                     
Projects temporarily suspended

Particulars
 CWIP- Plant & 
Machinery 

 CWIP- Building 
Development 

 CWIP- Electrical 
Installation 

 CWIP - Furniture and 
Fixtures 

 CWIP - Computer 
Equipment Total

Project Cost as on April 1, 2022 630.53                               7.94                                           85.99                                       -                                          724.46                       
Additions During the Financial Year 3,804.27                            1,545.25                                    124.96                                     0.00                                         2.77                             5,477.26                    
Capitalized during the financial year (630.53)                              (72.02)                                        (126.19)                                    -                                          (828.74)                     
Project Cost as on March 31, 2023 3804.27 1481.17 84.76 0.00 2.77 5372.98

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

Less than
1 year 1-2 years

2-3
years

More than 3
years Total

Projects in progress 5,372.98                             -                                              -                                            -                                           5,372.98                       
Projects temporarily suspended -                                      -                                              -                                            -                                           -                                

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of

The changes in the carrying value of Work in progress for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of

The changes in the carrying value of Work in progress for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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4.3         Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 75.49                                 75.49                                         
Additions during Year 1.22                                   1.22                                           
Deletions during Year -                                             
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 76.72                                 76.72                                         

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 (34.95)                                (34.95)                                        
Current Year Depreciation (6.04)                                  (6.04)                                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 (40.99)                                (40.99)                                        

Net Block as on April 1,2023 40.55                                 40.55                                         
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 35.73                                 35.73                                         

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 73.75                                 73.75                                         
Addition During the financial Year 1.92                                   1.92                                           
Deletion during the financial year (0.18)                                  (0.18)                                          
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 75.49                                 75.49                                         

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 (27.54)                                (27.54)                                        
Current Year Depreciation (7.58)                                  (7.58)                                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 0.17                                   0.17                                           
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 (34.95)                                (34.95)                                        

Net Block as on April 1,2022 46.21                                 46.21                                         
Net Block as on March 31,2023 40.55                                 40.55                                         

The changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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Note: 5
Investment Property

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 24.81 185.68 210.49
Additions During the Year 0.00
Deletions during the Year 0.00
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 24.81 185.68 210.49

0.00
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                          (134.67)                     (134.67)                      
Current Year Depreciation -                          (4.81)                         (4.81)                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 -                          (139.48)                     (139.48)                      

0.00
Net Block as on April 1,2023 24.81 51.01 75.82
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 24.81 46.20 71.01

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 24.81 185.68 210.49
Additions During the Financial Year
Deletions during the financial year
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 24.81 185.68 210.49

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 -                          (129.35)                     (129.35)                      
Current Year Depreciation (5.31)                         (5.31)                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletion
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 -                          (134.67)                     (134.67)                      

Net Block as on April 1,2022 24.81 56.33 81.14
Net Block as on March 31,2023 24.81 51.01 75.82

Notes : 
1) The Company’s investment properties consists of commercial properties in India.
2) Company’s investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulates impairment losses.
3) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties:

Particulars As at March 31, 
2024

As at March 31, 
2023

Rental income derived from Investment properties 64.47                      61.49                         
Direct operating expenses (0.39)                      (0.41)                         
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 64.08                      61.09                        
Less : Depreciation (4.81)                      (5.31)                         
Profit arising from investment properties 59.26                      55.77                         

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the period ended  March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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(Amount in rupees)

Note: 17

No. of Shares Amount in Rs No. of Shares Amount in Rs
(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 220.00 2200.00 220.00 2200.00
Preference Share Capital of Rs 1000 each 0.30 300.00 0.30 300.00

Total - Authorised Share Capital 220.30 2500.00 220.30 2500.00

(b)Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital comprises:
(i) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12

(c) Reconciliation statement of Shares Outstanding
Opening Balance 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12
Additions
(a) Fresh Issue
(b) Bonus Share
(c) Right Share
Deletions
Closing 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12

(a) Details of share held by each shareholder, holding more than 5% shares

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

22.76 11.10%              22.76 11.10%
13.86 6.76%              13.86 6.76%
12.07 5.89%              12.07 5.89%
12.25 5.97%              12.25 5.97%
10.97 5.35%              10.97 5.35%

b ) Details of Promoters Shareholding
Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

Percentage of 
Change during 
the year

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:
Manish Kumar Gupta 0.00% 13.86 6.76%              13.86 6.76%
Nishant Bothra 0.00% 12.25 5.97%              12.25 5.97%
Sidharth Agarwal 0.00% 10.15 4.95%              10.15 4.95%
Amit Agarwal 0.00% 8.10 3.95%                8.10 3.95%
Ravi Agarwal 0.00% 6.50 3.17%                6.50 3.17%
Alok Agarwal 0.00% 5.76 2.81%                5.76 2.81%
Manish Bothra 0.00% 0.58 0.28%                0.58 0.28%

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:
Alka Gupta
Manish Kumar Gupta
Jyoti Bothra
Nishant Bothra
Champa Bothra

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(d) The share capital of the company comprises solely of equity shares.  The rights, privileges and restrictions on such shares are those as provided normally under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(e)The company does not have any holding company. Hence, disclosure regarding number of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, 
their subsidiary and associates does not arise.
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Note: 6
Investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Investment in Equity instruments (Unquoted)
    - In Subsidiary
     i) 7,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in 70.00 70.00
                 B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED

70.00                                     70.00                                     

Note: 7
Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Security Deposits 177.77 141.30

Total Other Non Current Financial Assets 177.77                                   141.30                                   

Note: 8
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
                                           -   

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961 35.49                                            -   
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments (18.40)                                                                               -   
Related to IND AS Adjustments 1.50                                            -   

Total Deferred Taxes 18.59                                     -                                         

Note: 9
Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Advances 722.44 2330.28

Total Other non-current assets 722.44 2330.28

Note: 10
Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Raw Materials 2899.65 3752.42
Work-in-Progress 116.56 182.12
Finished goods 976.07 1022.66
Stores and Spares, Tools and Others 1066.55 1060.91
Stock of Scrap 16.27 13.00

Total Inventories 5,075.08                                6,031.11                                 

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2024

* On 9th May 2022 company has invested Rs. 70,00,000 in B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED which amounts to 70% holding in 
said company, According to IND AS 27  Company has measured its investment in subsidiary at cost.
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Note: 11
Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Trade Receivables- Secured

Trade Receivables- Unsecured
 - 9.1  Considered good
(a)  Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good                                            -   
Less than 6 months 7251.55 5246.65
6 months – 1 year 302.91 413.99
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
(b) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk                                            -   
Less than 6 months                                            -   
6 months – 1 year                                            -   
1-2 years 149.23 135.26
2-3 years 33.19 50.29
More than 3 years 50.18 31.81
 -   Less:- Provision for doubtful debts                                   (116.30)                                   (107.74)

Total Trade receivables 7,670.76                                5,770.25                                 

Note: 12
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Cash on hand 11.21 5.03
Balances with banks

-  In current account 0.10 0.10

Total Cash and bank balance 11.31                                     5.12                                       

Note: 13
Other Bank Balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Other Fixed deposit with Banks 2.57 36.13
Earmarked balances with banks 41.55 10.40

Total Other  bank balances 44.12                                     46.53                                     

Note: 14
Loans

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Loan to Subsidiary 513.68                                            -   

Total Loans 513.68                                   -                                         

* Company has given loan to it's subsidiary for working capital purposes on short term basis for a rate of interest 12% p.a.

Note: 15
Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Loans & Advances to Employees 47.57 37.59

Total Other Current Financial Assets 47.57                                     37.59                                     

Note: 16
Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Advances given to Suppliers of Goods 100.06 155.81
Balance with Govt. Authorities 111.58 495.63
Prepaid Expenses 113.62 134.66
Interest Receivable 13.32                                            -   
Other Receivables                                            -   2.05

Total Other Current Assets 338.58                                   788.15                                   
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Note: 18
Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Share Premium
Opening Balance 2086.15 2086.15
Less: Utilised/ transferred during the year                                            -                                              -   

Closing Balance                                  2,086.15                                  2,086.15 

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance                                  6,280.88                                  4,712.07 
Add: Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year                                  1,920.29                                  1,792.82 
Less: Prior Period Error                                            -                                       (18.90)
Dividend Payment                                   (205.11)                                   (205.11)

Closing Balance                                  7,996.06                                  6,280.88 

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans :
Opening Balance                                       (1.39)                                       (7.30)
Add or Less : Transactions during the year                                       (6.75)                                         5.90 

Closing Balance                                       (8.14)                                       (1.39)
Total Other Equity                                10,074.06                                  8,365.63 

Note: 19
Non Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1.5 % Cumulative Non-Convertible Non-Participating Redeemable Preference shares 
of Rs.1000 50.14 48.07

Secured
Term Loans-
  From Bank** 6418.93 4227.86
Unsecured                                            -   
Loans and Advances From Related Parties**** 850.00 850.00
Loans and Advances From Directors**** 1601.00 1312.50
Inter-corporate Borrowings*** 2548.65 1054.15

Total Non Current Borrowings 11,468.72                              7,492.57                                 

Notes:

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

**** Terms & Conditions for Loans & Advances from related parties and directors
Loans and Advances from related parties and directors are repayable after 31st March 2025, These loans carries rate of interest at 15%p.a,

b) The remaining outstanding of Rs.48.65 Lakhs inter corporate loan is from Amit Packs Private Limited (related party) which is unsecured and 
it carries rate of interest at 15% p.a.

** Details of securities given in respect of term loans and short term borrowings from banks:
All the term loans from banks are primarily secured by first charge of hypothecation on / mortgage of the assets financed under the respective
term loans. Besides this, following assets are given as common collateral security for the term loans and short term borrowings from banks,
namely, -
First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets exclusively financed by other banks.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at No. 86, KIADB Industrial Area, Bommasandra Jigani Link Road, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy. No. 263 2/3, Marsur Madival Village, Near Attibele Industrial Area, Anekal 
Taluk, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy No. 75 -1A2/1B1 & 73-2A Thyagarasanapalli (Shoolagiri) Hosur Taluk, 
Krishnagiri District, TN .

Leasehold land Plot no B-8, B-12 to B-18 Sipcot Industrial Complex Bargur, Parandapalli Village, Pochampali Taluk, Krishnagiri District Tamil 
Nadu 635206.
Personal Guarantee of Promoters / Directors / KMP / Shareholders (Relatives of Directors / KMPs) of the equity shareholding namely Alok
Agarwal, Amit Agarwal, Manish Bothra, Nishant Bothra, Ravi Agarwal, Sidharth Agarwal, Manish Kumar Gupta.

The Rate of interest on term loans varies from 8.6% p.a to 9.3% p.a

*** Terms & Conditions for Inter Corporate Borrowing
a) Outstanding unsecured inter corporate loan(Including current maturities) of Rs.3000 Lakhs is from Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd ,Out of Which 
Rs. 2000 Lakhs is  repayable over a period of 3 years with rate of interest 11.75% p.a and Rs. 1000 lakhs is repayable after two 2 years with rate 
of interest 11.25% p.a.

* 5,467 1.5 % preference shares have been issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares without payment being received in cash to the equity
shareholders of B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (formerly known as B&B Triplewall Containers Private Limited,) as at January 8, 2016 in
terms of the scheme of amalgamation ('the Scheme') sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature at Karnataka vide Order dated January 8, 2016.
Company may redeem these preference shares after the completion of 3 years from the date of issue at it's option. There is no any redemption
during the current financial year.
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Note: 20
Lease Liability

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Rental Deposit                                       32.84                                       30.75 

Total Non Current Provisions 32.84                                     30.75                                     

Note: 21
Non Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

a) Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity 24.72 13.48

Total Non Current Provisions 24.72 13.48

Note: 22
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961                                            -   (30.51)                                    
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments                                            -   46.36                                     
Related to IND AS Adjustments                                            -   (0.80)                                      

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities -                                         15.05                                     

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying 
the statutory income tax rate to the income before income taxes is summarized 
below :

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Profit before income taxes                                  2,585.55                                  2,404.31 
Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense                                     650.73                                     605.12 
Tax effects on adjustments which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable 
income :
Interest on delayed payment of income tax & Penalties                                        2.24                                         6.75 
CSR expenses                                       13.02                                         4.81 
Other effects                                        2.74                                       (5.19)
Total impact                                       18.00                                         6.37 

Current Tax                                     703.73                                     651.54 
Deferred Tax                                     (34.99)                                     (40.05)

Income tax expense as per P&L (Current + Deferred tax)                                     668.73                                     611.49 

Note: 23
Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance Rent Received 3.86                                       5.78

Total Non Current Provisions 3.86                                       5.78                                       

Note: 24
Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Secured :
Loans repayable on demand
-   From Bank
   -     Working capital loan* 3424.31 3475.56
 -   From Other Parties** 1000.00 1000.00
Current Maturities of long term debt*** 2081.07 283.49

Total Current Borrowings 6,505.38                                4,759.05                                 
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Note:

These loans carries interest rate at 9.3% p.a

*** Out of total current maturities of long term Rs. 1581.07 Lakhs are from banks and Rs. 500 Lakhs are Inter corporate borrowings .

Note: 25
Trade Payables

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(i) MSME
 Less than 1year 2122.06 2.11

1-2 years 2.11 0.00
 2-3years                                            -                                              -   

 More than 3 years                                            -                                              -   
(ii) Others
10.2 (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 4100.77

 Less than 1year 1942.10 3193.08
1-2 years 33.92 46.95

 2-3years 0.63 -                                          
 More than 3 years                                            -                                              -   

 Total Trade Payables 8,201.58                                3,242.14                                 

Note: 26
Other Current Financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Preference Dividend payable 0.82 0.82

Total  Other Current Financial Liabilities 0.82                                       0.82                                       

Note: 27
Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Statutory Dues 270.64 102.30
Advance from Customers 7.02 12.18
Payable for Expenses 734.40 299.43
Advance Rent Received 1.93 1.93
Unpaid Dividend Payable 0.19 0.02
Unspent CSR Liability 90.92 49.75

Total Other Current Liabilities                                  1,105.10                                     465.61 

Note: 28
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Provision for Taxation 703.73                                    651.54
Less : Advance Income tax (Inc  TDS receivable) (559.54)                                  (577.47)                                  

Total Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 144.19                                   74.06                                     

First Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Current Assets of the company, Second Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Fixed Assets of 
the company, Unconditional and irrevocable Personal Guarantee from the Promoters, Demand Promissory note and Letter of Continuity, 
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Manish Gupta, Mr. Ravi Agarwal,  Mr.  Manish Bothra and Mr. Alok Aggarwal.

These loan carries interest rate at HDFC bank 3 months MCLR+XX% spread p.a.

* Working Capital Loans from Banks are secured by the following assets:

Hypothecation of all the current assets of the Company comprising, inter alia, of inventories of raw material, work-in-progress and finished 
goods, trade receivables, book debts and other current assets.
Common collateral securities are given in respect of the term loans (see Note 12 above on Non-Current Borrowing) and working capital loans 
from banks. Please refer sub-note  under Note 12 above on Long Term Borrowings for details of common collateral securities given in respect of 
the Working Capital Loans From Banks.

** Loans from other party is taken from Bajaj Finance Limited (NBFC) which is secured by following assets:



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 109

Note: 29
Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Sale of Products 37,447.74                         33,674.82                        
Sale of Services 3.77                                  9.54                                 

Total 37,451.51                        33,684.36                        

Note: 30
Other Income

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Interest Income                                 21.64                                  5.19 
Profit on foreign exchange                                   9.90                                20.64 
Profit on Sale of Assets                                   6.78                                  8.46 
Rental Income                                 64.47                                61.49 

Total                               102.80                                95.78 

Note: 31
Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Opening Stock of Raw Material 3,752.42                           3,327.56                          
Add:- Purchases (Net) 26,479.49                         26,378.59                        
Add:- Freight Charges 637.25                              514.09                             
Less :-Sale of scrap (1,274.88)                         (1,541.29)                        
Add:- Custom Duty 35.54                                116.01                             
Less:- Closing Stock of Raw Material 2,899.65                           3,752.42                          

Total 26,730.18                        25,042.55                        

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Imported/Indigenous Consumption
Raw Material Consumed
Imported 220.40                              1,283.61                          
Indigenous 26,509.78                         23,758.94                        

26,730.18                        25,042.55                        

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 1% 5%
Indigenous 99% 95%

Component, Stores and Spare Consumed
Imported 196.99                              160.51                             
Indigenous 314.68                              65.56                               

511.67                              226                                  

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 38% 71%
Indigenous 62% 29%

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  31st March 2024



Note: 32
Changes of inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Opening Inventory
Finished Goods 1,022.66                           919.54                             
Work-in-Progress 182.12                              76.70                               

Closing Inventory
Finished Goods 976.07                              1,022.66                          
Work-in-Progress 116.56                              182.12                             

Net (Increase)/Decrease 112.16                             (208.54)                           

Note: 33
Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Salaries to Directors 228.00                              228.00                             
Salaries and Wages - Others 1,923.18                           1,473.58                          
Contribution to Provident Fund 87.31                                65.99                               
Contribution to ESI Fund 16.89                                15.38                               
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 144.97                              129.01                             
Bonus 85.44                                67.07                               
Gratuity 35.85                                28.28                               

Total 2,521.62                          2,007.32                          

Note: 34
Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

1) Interest Expenses
Bank - on borrowings 164.83                              229.00                             
Others - on borrowings 413.91                              364.27                             
Others - delayed payment of taxes other than IT 1.02                                  1.05                                 
Others - delayed payment of IT 5.94                                  25.79                               
Other borrowing Cost 9.57                                  2.64                                 

2) Preference Dividend 2.89                                  2.78                                 
Total 598.17                             625.52                             

Note: 35
Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Payment made to Auditors
 As auditors - Statutory Audit 4.00                                  4.00                                 
 As auditors - Tax Audit 1.25                                  1.25                                 

Total (A) 5.25                                 5.25                                 

Manufacturing Expenses
Consumable Stores & Spares 511.67                              226.07                             
Die and Sterio Expenses 177.73                              194.99                             
Power and Fuel 788.33                              674.40                             
Repairs and maintenance on building 21.73                                17.32                               
Repairs and maintenance on machinery 165.84                              116.74                             
Security Service Charges 65.91                                56.06                               

Total (B) 1,731.22                          1,285.57                          

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 000



Selling & Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses 2.46                                  1.74                                 
CFA Commission & Reimbursements 49.40                                28.61                               
Carriage Outwards 1,655.77                           1,204.44                          
Advertisment expenses 2.38                                  1.52                                 

Total (C) 1,710.02                          1,236.32                          

Other Expenses
Rent 239.23                              120.37                             
Rates and Taxes 33.44                                18.81                               
CSR Expenditure 51.74                                39.59                               
Office Expenses 64.78                                54.02                               
Travelling and conveyance 107.22                              101.56                             
Membership & Subscription 0.96                                  1.24                                 
Legal and professional 36.28                                36.32                               
Repair & Maintenance Other 34.02                                26.71                               
Insurance 42.39                                57.05                               
Communication Expenses 13.24                                10.25                               
Printing and Stationery 12.77                                10.33                               
Provision For Bad Debts 8.56                                  4.06                                 
Loss on High Sea Sales 2.74                                  -                                   
Testing Charges 0.20                                  3.20                                 
Miscellaneous expenses 0.41                                  0.25                                 

Total (D)                               647.97                              483.76 
Total (A+B+C+D) 4,094.46                          3,010.91                          

Note: 36
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans                                 (5.39)                                  4.53 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                 (1.36)                                  1.37 

Total (6.75)                                5.90                                 

Note: 37
Earning Per Share

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Net profit for the year 1,920.29                          1,792.82                          
Nominal value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 205.11                              205.11                             
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 205.11                              205.11                             
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic earning per share 
& diluted earning per share 205.11                              205.11                             
Basic earning per share 9.36                                 8.74                                 
Diluted earning per share 9.36                                 8.74                                 
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Note: 38

a) Contingent liabilities not provided for :

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Income Tax 
Act 45.83 45.83

Income Tax 
Act 100.49                                           -   

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Income Tax 
Act 63.93 63.93

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
1831.31 3250.00

Note: 39
Foreign Currency Income & Expenditure

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

220.40 1283.61
196.99 160.51
923.01 733.07

LEI renewal charges 0.03 0.04

Earnings in Foreign Exchange:
-                                           -                                        

Note: 40
Payment To Auditors

2023-24 2022-23
4.00 4.00
1.25 1.25

Note: 41
Leases
a. Company as a Lessor

2023-24 2022-23
62.54 59.56

65.67 62.54
128.79 194.46

-                                           -                                        

b. Company as a Lessee

2023-24 2022-23
236.58                                     118.05

178.64 129.64
868.35 836.37
467.75 647.44

Note: 42

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  March 31,2024

Particulars
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit

Disputes pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Income Tax Order(AY 2013-14) High Court of Karnataka

b) Commitments :

Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending

Income Tax Order (AY 2017-18) Commissioner of Income Tax(Appeals)

* The above demand is raised by the income tax department on account of non consideration of TDS credit of the enterprise which is merged into the company.
The Company has filed application with DCIT/ACIT for rectification order.

Undisputed demands pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Nature of Dues

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease
   -  Not later than one year
   -  Later than one year and not later than five years

Ind AS-108  Operating Segments

The Company has given building on operating lease. The lease agreement is for a period of 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms and 2.8 
years of lease term is left as on 31st March 2024 . The particulars in respect of such lease is as follows:-

Particulars

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating officer
i.e. Managing director of the company. 
On review of operations, it is identified that the company has only one segment.

Lease receipts recognised in statement of profit and loss

The Company has taken various premises on operating lease. The lease agreements is for a period of 11 months to 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually 
agreeable terms.

Particulars
Lease payments recognised in statement of profit and loss

   -  Not later than one year
Future minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating lease

   -  Later than one year and not later than five years
   -  Later than five years

Particulars
Commitments on capital account

Particulars

Value of Imports on CIF Basis in respect of
Raw Materials
Stores, Chemicals and Packing Materials
Capital Goods

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

FOB Value of Export

   -  Later than five years

Authority Where it is pending

Income Tax Order(AY 2016-17) DCIT/ACIT(Rectification Filed u/s 154 on Income Tax Act 1961)
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Information about products and services

Information about major customers

Note: 43

S.No Nature Of 
Relationship

Amount of loan or 
advance in the nature of 
loan outstanding

Percentage to the 
total Loans and 
Advances in the 
nature of loans

Amount of loan or advance 
in the nature of loan 
outstanding

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 

the nature of loans

1
Subsidiary 
Company 513.68                                     91.52% -                                           -                                        

Note: 44
Comparative statement of of Quarterly returns of Current Asset  submitted to the bank in relation to books of accounts

Particulars   Books 
 Statement  to 
bank 

 Variance(Rs. 
In Lakhs)  Period 

Debtors 5769.75 5766.38                   3.38 QTR-1

Inventory 5443.35 5443.35                       -   QTR-1

Debtors 6464.62 6461.18                   3.44 QTR-2

Inventory 5446.30 5446.30                       -   QTR-2

Debtors 5991.60 5956.16                 35.44 QTR-3

Inventory 5287.32 5287.32                       -   QTR-3

Debtors 7780.05 7780.20                 (0.15) QTR-4

Inventory 5075.08 5075.08                       -   QTR-4

Note: 45
Corporate Social Responsibility
Sl.No 2023-24 2022-23

1 51.74                                       39.59                                     
2 Amount of expenditure incurred 2.18                                         0.22                                       
3 Shortfall at the end of the year 49.56                                       39.37                                     
4 Total of previous years shortfall 41.36                                       10.38                                     

5 Reason for shortfall

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a period 
of time.

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a 
period of time.

6  Rural Development  Rural Development 

7 NA NA

8 NA NA

Name of Borrower

B And B Colour Cartons Private 
Limited

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, 
the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

Nature of CSR activities

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013.)

Above 10% sales or purchases to one person
There are two companies from which the company earns more than 10% of its revenue.

31st March 2024

B&B Triplewall Containers Limited manufactures and supplies paper container packaging products. The Company offers corrugated box, boards, and sheets.

31st March 2023Particulars

Reason for Difference in Debtors Value: The Debtors /Creditors has been reclassified /Regrouped during the year, Which was not considered in the statement submitted to 
bank.

Pariculars

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to 
CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
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Note: 46
Prior Period Errors

A) CSR Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

CSR 
Expenditure

Increase
Profit

(Reduced)
Other equity-Retained 

earnings (Reduced)

CSR Unspent 
Liability
Increase

CSR Unspent Bank(Asset)
Increase

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
(Decrease)

2022-23                    20.46 (20.46)              (20.46)                                                                  30.85 10.38                                       (0.10)                                     

2019-20 to 2021-22                          -                         -   (18.90)                                                                  18.90 -                                          -                                        
Total                    20.46               (20.46)                                      (39.37)                              49.75                                        10.38                                      (0.10)

B) Bonus Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

Bonus 
Expenditure
(Reduced)

Profit
Increased

Bonus Payable
(Reduced)

CWIP
Increased

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
Increase

2022-23                    (2.11)                   2.11 (1.09)                                       1.02                                                                       0.01 

Note: 47

Note: 48

Note: 49

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet)

On account of bonus expenditure as given above the liability was considered more in last year financials , Now it has been rectified in 
comparative figures. Further Rs. 101712 bonus expenditure which is of capital nature has not been capitalized last year now the same has 
been rectified in comparative figures.

Erroneously bonus expenditure has been considered more by Rs. 210758 in last financials statements on account of error in application of 
accounting policy , As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has restated the comparative 
amounts for the FY 2022-23.

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of 
Profit or loss)

There is no impairment to assets as per Indian Accounting Standard 36 issued by Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Consequently, there is no impairment loss
debited to Profit and Loss account.

Balances in parties’ accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the In-direct Method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard– 7 issued under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet) CSR Unspent Liability and CSR Unspent Bank (Asset) - has been netted off and not shown separately in balance sheet as on 31st March 2023, 
Now it has been rectified in comparative financial statements and detail of the same as given below.

CSR Expenditure has not been considered on accrual basis instead it has been accounted on payment basis from FY 2019-20 to FY 2022-23 
due to error in application of accounting policy. As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has 
restated the comparative amounts for the FY 2022-23 and restated the opening balances of liability and equity(i.e on 1st April 2022) for the 
errors pertaining to FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22 as given below

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of 
Profit or loss)
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Note: 50
Related Parties Disclosures
As per IND AS 24 , the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

SI NO Relationship
1 Director
2 KMP
3 Director
4 Director
5 KMP
6 Director
7 KMP
8 Relatives of Director
9 Relatives of Director

10 Director is Karta
11 KMP IS KARTA
12 Relatives of Director
13 Relatives of Director
14 Relatives of Director
15 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
16 Director is Karta
17 Relatives of Director
18 Relatives of Director
19 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
20 Relatives of Director
21 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
22 Relatives of Director
23 Relatives of Director
24 Relatives of Director
25 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
26 KMP IS KARTA
27 Relatives of Director
28 Director is Karta
29 Relatives of Director
30 KMP IS KARTA
31 Relatives of Director
32 Relatives of Director
33
34
35
36
37 SINGLA PACKAGING
38 Subsidiary Company

Disclosure of transactions with related parties

SI NO 2023-24 2022-23
1

358.50                           573.00                                             
Alok Agarwal 13.50                             8.00                                                 
Manish Bothra 40.00                             50.00                                               
Manish Kumar Gupta 291.00                           455.00                                             
Ravi Agarwal 14.00                             60.00                                               

7.50                               -                                                   
7.50                               

2

70.00                             7.00                                                 
Alok Agarwal -                                 7.00                                                 
Manish Bothra 70.00                             -                                                   

13.00                             4.70                                                 
13.00                             4.70                                                 

Enterprises over which Directors
have significant influence

Amit Packs Private Limited

Director :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Amit Packs Private Limited

Loan Repaid

Directors :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Particulars
Loan Accepted

SWATI BOTHRA
VIDYA DEVI AGARWAL
AMIT PACKS PRIVATE LIMITED
KAUSHIK PRODUCTS
RD INDUSTRIES
SAPTHAGIRI PACKAGING

B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED

SIDHARTH AGARWAL HUF

MOHANLAL AGARWAL HUF
NAVAL AGARWAL
NAVAL AGARWAL HUF
NEELAM AGARWAL
NEHA AGARWAL
NIDHI AGARWAL
NIRMAL KUMAR BOTHRA HUF
NISHANT BOTHRA HUF
RANJANA DEVI AGARWAL
RAVI AGARWAL HUF
RITU AGARWAL

MOHANLAL AGARWAL

SIDHARTH AGARWAL
AARTI AGARWAL
ALKA GUPTA
ALOK AGARWAL HUF
AMIT AGARWAL HUF
CHAMPA BOTHRA
JYOTI BOTHRA
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL HUF
MANISH BOTHRA HUF
MEERA GUPTA

RAVI AGARWAL

Name of Related Parties

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  March 31,2024

ALOK AGARWAL
AMIT AGARWAL
MANISH BOTHRA
MANISH KUMAR GUPTA
NISHANT BOTHRA
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3 Loan Given

Subsidiary:
513.68                           -                                                   

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 513.68                           

4

Director : 226.86                           153.75                                             
Alok Agarwal 14.40                             12.82                                               
Ravi Agarwal 29.04                             22.53                                               
Manish Bothra 16.92                             18.06                                               
Manish Kumar Gupta 166.50                           100.34                                             

KMP : 7.28                               7.28                                                 
Amit Agarwal 1.35                               1.35                                                 
Nishant Bothra 0.90                               0.90                                                 
Sidharth Agarwal 5.03                               5.03                                                 

KMP Is Karta: 15.65                             15.65                                               
Amit Agarwal Huf 3.10                               3.10                                                 
Nishant Bothra Huf 12.00                             12.00                                               
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 0.55                               0.55                                                 

Director is Karta: 22.20                             22.20                                               
Alok Agarwal Huf 2.40                               2.40                                                 
Manish Bothra Huf 16.20                             16.20                                               
Ravi Agarwal Huf 3.60                               3.60                                                 

Relatives of Director: 65.25                             65.25                                               
Aarti Agarwal 0.68                               0.68                                                 
Alka Gupta 15.19                             15.19                                               
Champa Bothra 15.45                             15.45                                               
Jyoti Bothra 4.13                               4.13                                                 
Meera Gupta 13.01                             13.01                                               
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.83                               0.83                                                 
Neha Agarwal 0.90                               0.90                                                 
Nidhi Agarwal 1.02                               1.02                                                 
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 8.06                               8.06                                                 
Ritu Agarwal 1.35                               1.35                                                 
Swati Bothra 2.93                               2.93                                                 
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.73                               1.73                                                 

Relative of Director is Karta: 24.41                             24.41                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 4.68                               4.68                                                 
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 4.95                               4.95                                                 
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 14.78                             14.78                                               

8.27                               8.49                                                 
Amit Packs Private Limited 8.27                               8.49                                                 

5

KMP: 144.00                           144.00                                             
Amit Agarwal 48.00                             48.00                                               
Nishant Bothra 48.00                             48.00                                               
Sidharth Agarwal 48.00                             48.00                                               

Directors: 228.00                           228.00                                             
Alok Agarwal 48.00                             48.00                                               
Ravi Agarwal 48.00                             48.00                                               
Manish Bothra 48.00                             48.00                                               
Manish Kumar Gupta 84.00                             84.00                                               

6

(184.99)                          (119.66)                                            
(25.98)                            (36.61)                                              
(27.90)                            (17.36)                                              

(120.33)                          (62.91)                                              
(10.79)                            (2.79)                                                

Subsidiary:
(0.69)                              (6.21)                                                

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited (0.69)                              (6.21)                                                

Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Outstanding (receivable )/payable as at year end
Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Remuneration

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Interest Expenses
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30.28                             25.67                                               
2.49                               4.78                                                 
9.85                               2.51                                                 

10.88                             14.18                                               
7.06                               4.20                                                 

7

48.65                             54.15                                               
48.65                             54.15                                               

Directors: 1,552.50                        1,264.00                                          
96.00                             82.50                                               

116.00                           146.00                                             
1,145.00                        854.00                                             

195.50                           181.50                                             

Director Is Karta: 148.00                           148.00                                             
Alok Agarwal Huf 16.00                             16.00                                               
Manish Bothra Huf 108.00                           108.00                                             
Ravi Agarwal Huf 24.00                             24.00                                               

KMP: 48.50                             48.50                                               
Amit Agarwal 9.00                               9.00                                                 
Nishant Bothra 6.00                               6.00                                                 
Sidharth Agarwal 33.50                             33.50                                               

KMP Is Karta: 104.30                           104.30                                             
Amit Agarwal Huf 20.65                             20.65                                               
Nishant Bothra Huf 80.00                             80.00                                               
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 3.65                               3.65                                                 

Relatives of Director: 435.00                           435.00                                             
Aarti Agarwal 4.54                               4.54                                                 
Alka Gupta 101.25                           101.25                                             
Champa Bothra 103.00                           103.00                                             
Jyoti Bothra 27.50                             27.50                                               
Meera Gupta 86.71                             86.71                                               
Mohanlal Agarwal 5.50                               5.50                                                 
Neha Agarwal 6.00                               6.00                                                 
Nidhi Agarwal 6.80                               6.80                                                 
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 53.70                             53.70                                               
Ritu Agarwal 9.00                               9.00                                                 
Swati Bothra 19.50                             19.50                                               
Vidya Devi Agarwal 11.50                             11.50                                               

Relative of Director Is Karta: 162.70                           162.70                                             
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 31.20                             31.20                                               
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 33.00                             33.00                                               
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 98.50                             98.50                                               

8

7.44                               -                                                   
7.44                               -                                                   

Directors: 204.17                           -                                                   
12.96                             -                                                   
15.22                             -                                                   

149.85                           -                                                   
26.14                             -                                                   

Director Is Karta: 19.98                             -                                                   
Alok Agarwal Huf 2.16                               -                                                   
Manish Bothra Huf 14.58                             -                                                   
Ravi Agarwal Huf 3.24                               -                                                   

KMP: 6.55                               -                                                   
Amit Agarwal 1.22                               -                                                   
Nishant Bothra 0.81                               -                                                   
Sidharth Agarwal 4.52                               -                                                   

KMP Is Karta: 14.08                             -                                                   
Amit Agarwal Huf 2.79                               -                                                   
Nishant Bothra Huf 10.80                             -                                                   
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 0.49                               -                                                   

Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Interest on loan outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Loans outstanding at the year end
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Relatives of Director: 58.72                             -                                                   
Aarti Agarwal 0.61                               -                                                   
Alka Gupta 13.67                             -                                                   
Champa Bothra 13.91                             -                                                   
Jyoti Bothra 3.71                               -                                                   
Meera Gupta 11.71                             -                                                   
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.74                               -                                                   
Neha Agarwal 0.81                               -                                                   
Nidhi Agarwal 0.92                               -                                                   
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 7.25                               -                                                   
Ritu Agarwal 1.22                               -                                                   
Swati Bothra 2.63                               -                                                   
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.55                               -                                                   

Relative of Director Is Karta: 21.96                             -                                                   
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 4.21                               -                                                   
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 4.46                               -                                                   
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 13.30                             -                                                   

9

Subsidiary: 513.68                           -                                                   
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 513.68                           -                                                   

10

Subsidiary: 13.32                             
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 13.32                             -                                                   

11

3,271.58                        3,555.40                                          
805.51                           1,292.58                                          
822.83                           808.50                                             
969.88                           946.90                                             
673.35                           507.42                                             

Subsidiary:
228.41                           29.92                                               

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 228.41                           29.92                                               

12

536.29                           456.69                                             
40.82                             7.37                                                 

178.54                           30.95                                               
218.37                           289.81                                             
98.56                             128.56                                             

Subsidiary:
205.79                           -                                                   

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 205.79                           -                                                   

13 Rent Paid
31.89                             17.64                                               

Alka Gupta
-                                 4.41                                                 

Jyoti Bothra 5.32                               2.21                                                 
7.63                               4.41                                                 
4.63                               4.41                                                 
5.32                               2.21                                                 

Aarti Agarwal 6.00                               -                                                   
Ritu Agarwal 3.00                               -                                                   

10.63                             -                                                   
Singla Packaging 10.63                             -                                                   

14 Interest income:
Subsidiary:

14.80                             -                                                   
B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED 14.80                             -                                                   

15
Investment

Subsidiary:
70.00                             70.00                                               

B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED 70.00                             70.00                                               

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 

Loans given outstanding at the year end

Swati Bothra

Singla Packaging

Relative of Director:

Neha Agarwal
Nidhi Agarwal

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging

Singla Packaging

Purchases

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging

Sales

Interest on Loans given receivable at the year end
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Note: 51

[i] Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
    - change in financial assumptions                         (3.77)

    - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.03                                                      0.44 

Benefits Paid
Present Value of Obligation as at the end

[ii] Change in Fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Income
Employer's Contributions
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end

[iii] Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Current Liability (Short term)
Non-Current Liability (Long term)
Present Value of Obligation

[iv] Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability / (Asset)
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

[v] Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year

Actuarial (gains) / losses
    - change in demographic assumptions
   - change in financial assumptions
   - experience Variance (i.e. ACTUAL experience vs 
assumptions. 0.03                            
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(vi) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :

Discount rate (per annum)

Salary growth rate (per annum)

                                                             131.29                                                            108.45 
                                                                 9.60                                                                7.04 
                                                               34.86                                                              27.00 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Employee benefit plans 
1. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump 
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 
days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The Company 
manages the plan through a trust. The following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements:

Particulars
For the period ending

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

                                                             116.81                                                              88.73 

                                                                (8.07)                                                              (7.87)
                                                             172.86                                                            131.29 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

                                                                 8.62                                                                5.76 
                                                               30.00                                                              30.00 
                                                                (8.07)                                                              (7.87)

                                                                     -                                                                     -   
                                                               24.72                                                              13.48 
                                                               24.72                                                              13.48 

                                                                (0.23)                                                                1.20 

                                                             147.14                                                            116.81 

                                                                 0.99                                                                1.28 

                                                               35.85                                                              28.28 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

                                                               34.86                                                              27.00 

Particulars As on
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

                                                                 0.23                                                              (1.20)

                                                                 5.39                                                              (4.53)

7.15% 7.30%
10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 

thereafter
10% for the first three years and 7% 

thereafter

                                                                 5.13 
                                                                  -   

                                                             (3.77)

                                                               0.44 

5.13                                                                 
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(vii) Gratuity - As per actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2024

Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality rate

Normal retirement age
Attrition / Withdrawal rates (per annum)

(viii) Summary of Membership Status

Number of employees
Total monthly salary (Lakhs)
Average past service (years)
Average age (years)
Average remaining working life (years)
Number of completed years valued
Expected remaining working life (years)

(ix) Sensitivity Analysis

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)                                                              (% 

change compared to base due to sensitivity)
 18,410,652             

6.5% 
16,279,009                                  

-5.8%
 13,969,050              

6.4% 
12,377,039                                         

-5.7%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)                                                                          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
16,279,636                                                                                                                                                                     

-5.8%
18,388,877                               

6.4%
12,376,583                                                                                                                                                    

-5.7%
13,953,995                                     

6.3%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
17,933,016                        

3.7%
16,666,345                                          

-3.6%
13,441,375         

2.4%
12,777,660          -

2.7%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
17,285,297                          

0.0%
17,286,356                                  

0.0%
13,128,862                   

0.0%
13,129,681                         

0.0%

Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2.  Defined contribution plans:

100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

58 Years 58 Years

Particulars As on
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

A sum of Rs. 104.20 Lakhs has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of Company’s contribution to  provident fund and 
employees state insurance.

Particulars As on

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, 
the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate 
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants 
in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present 
value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to 
market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the 
risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to 
time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000).

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields / rates available on 
applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

Risk analysis

As on
31-Mar-24

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
                                                                  605                                                                 401 

15.00% 15.00%

Particulars

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer below where assumptions for prior 
period, if applicable, are given.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined 
considering the general trend in inflation, senority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in 
employment market, etc.

Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death 
or disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

The assumptions used in this Report, other than the rates of mortality, are the expectations of the Company for future years. The Company 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consider the relevant factors (including historical trends, which may or may not be suitable for future 
projections or may be suitable only after certain adjustments / modifications) in determination of assumptions.

The Company has also been advised on the sensitivity of results to change in the chosen assumptions and experience variance / adjustments, Since 
it is the Company's prerogative to decide on expected future trends and since the Company is best aware of the various factors affecting the future 
trends, the assumptions given by the Company have been accepted.

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availabilty of 
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

                                                               28.30                                                              27.67 
                                                               1,540                                                              1,262 
                                                                 5.88                                                                5.84 

31-Mar-23

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

                                                             104.81                                                                   66 
                                                                 2.55                                                                3.15 
                                                               29.72                                                              30.37 
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Note: 52
 Financial instruments 

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments 70.00                                            -                                                        70.00                                                      
    (ii) Security Deposits 177.77                                          -                                                        177.77                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 7,670.76                                       -                                                        7,670.76                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11.31                                            -                                                        11.31                                                      
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 44.12                                            -                                                        44.12                                                      
   iv) Loans 513.68                                          
   v) Other Financial Assets 47.57                                            -                                                        47.57                                                      

-                                                          
-                                                          

Total 8,535.21                                       -                                                        8,021.53                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 11,468.72                                     -                                                        11,468.72                                               
    ia) Lease Liabilities 32.84                                            -                                                        32.84                                                      
Current 
    i) Borrowings 6,505.38                                       -                                                        6,505.38                                                 
   ii) Trade Payables 4,100.81                                       -                                                        4,100.81                                                 
   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 22,108.56                                     -                                                        22,108.56                                               

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as follows :

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments 70.00                                            -                                                        70.00                                                      
    (iii) Security Deposits 141.30                                          -                                                        141.30                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 5,770.25                                       -                                                        5,770.25                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.12                                              -                                                        5.12                                                        
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 46.53                                            -                                                        46.53                                                      
   iv) Other Financial Assets 37.59                                            -                                                        37.59                                                      

-                                                          
-                                                          

Total 6,070.79                                       -                                                        6,070.79                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 7,492.57                                       -                                                        7,492.57                                                 
    ia) Lease Liabilities 30.75                                            -                                                        30.75                                                      
Current 
    i) Borrowings 4,759.05                                       -                                                        4,759.05                                                 
   ii) Trade Payables 3,240.85                                       -                                                        3,240.85                                                 
   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 15,524.04                                     -                                                        15,524.04                                               

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Financial instruments by category
 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 are as follows : 

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g. loans and others),current financial assets (e.g., cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables, loans and others excluding other derivative assets) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables and other payables excluding derivative 
liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts.
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Note: 53
Financial Ratios 

Particulars Formula 2023-24 2022-23 Variance Reason for Variance
Curent Asset /
Current Liabilites
Debt/
Shareholders funds
(EBITDA-Taxes)/
Interest and Principle
Net Profit After tax
Average Shareholders 
Equity
Cost of Goods Sold
Average inventory
Turnover/
Average Trade receivable
Turnover/
Average Trade Payables
Turnover/
Average Working capital
Net profit/ 
Turnover
Net profit/

Average Capital Employed

Net Profit/
Average Total Investment

Reasons for the variances exceeding 25% has been given.

(a) Current Ratio, 1.16 1.48 -22% NA

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, 1.48 1.18 26% Debt equity ratio has increased on account of increase in 
the borrowings during the year 

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 0.18 0.26 -28% Decrease in Debt service coverage ratio is on account of 
increase in borrowings during the year.

(d) Return on Equity Ratio, 0.17 0.19 -8% NA

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, 5.29 2.78 90% Reduction in average inventory and improvement in 
turnover led to improvement in the ratio.

(f) Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio,

5.57 6.21 -10% NA

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio, 10.20 11.69 -13% NA

(h) Net capital turnover ratio, 12.52 7.98 57% Reduction in average working capital and improvement 
in the turnover led to improvement in the ratio.

(i) Net profit ratio, 0.05 0.05 -4% NA

(j) Return on Capital employed, 0.09 0.12 -24% NA

(k) Return on investment. 0.09 0.12 -24% NA
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Information about products and services

Information about major customers

Note: 43

S.No Nature Of 
Relationship

Amount of loan or 
advance in the nature of 
loan outstanding

Percentage to the 
total Loans and 
Advances in the 
nature of loans

Amount of loan or advance 
in the nature of loan 
outstanding

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 

the nature of loans

1
Subsidiary 
Company 513.68                                     91.52% -                                           -                                        

Note: 44
Comparative statement of of Quarterly returns of Current Asset  submitted to the bank in relation to books of accounts

Particulars   Books 
 Statement  to 
bank 

 Variance(Rs. 
In Lakhs)  Period 

Debtors 5769.75 5766.38                   3.38 QTR-1

Inventory 5443.35 5443.35                       -   QTR-1

Debtors 6464.62 6461.18                   3.44 QTR-2

Inventory 5446.30 5446.30                       -   QTR-2

Debtors 5991.60 5956.16                 35.44 QTR-3

Inventory 5287.32 5287.32                       -   QTR-3

Debtors 7780.05 7780.20                 (0.15) QTR-4

Inventory 5075.08 5075.08                       -   QTR-4

Note: 45
Corporate Social Responsibility
Sl.No 2023-24 2022-23

1 51.74                                       39.59                                     
2 Amount of expenditure incurred 2.18                                         0.22                                       
3 Shortfall at the end of the year 49.56                                       39.37                                     
4 Total of previous years shortfall 41.36                                       10.38                                     

5 Reason for shortfall

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a period 
of time.

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a 
period of time.

6  Rural Development  Rural Development 

7 NA NA

8 NA NA

Name of Borrower

B And B Colour Cartons Private 
Limited

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, 
the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

Nature of CSR activities

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013.)

Above 10% sales or purchases to one person
There are two companies from which the company earns more than 10% of its revenue.

31st March 2024

B&B Triplewall Containers Limited manufactures and supplies paper container packaging products. The Company offers corrugated box, boards, and sheets.

31st March 2023Particulars

Reason for Difference in Debtors Value: The Debtors /Creditors has been reclassified /Regrouped during the year, Which was not considered in the statement submitted to 
bank.

Pariculars

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to 
CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Note: 54

Note: 55
Other Statutory Information

e) The Company does not have any transaction with struck-off companies.

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Note: 56
Other discosures

As per our report of even date 
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED For PARY & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684 Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYQ2561

Place : Bangalore Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024 Date : 30 May 2024

a) As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022,  Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules 2022. The books of accounts along with other 
relevant records and papers of the companies are currently maintained in the electronic mode. These are readily accesible in india at all times and backup 
is maintained on servers located in india, on daily basis.

b) The disclosures under additional reporting requirements, which are not applicable to the company are not disclosed in the current year financial 
statements.

f) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the 
statutory period.

g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries), with the 
understanding that the intermediary shall;
   - Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries), or
   - Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

h) The Company does not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate comparison with current year’s figures.

a) The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financials statements included under Property Plant and Equipment are held in the name 
of the company as at the balance sheet date.
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or intangible asset or both during the year.
c)The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 
property.
d) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during 
the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Regrouping & Reclassification
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Note: 46
Prior Period Errors

A) CSR Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

CSR 
Expenditure

Increase
Profit

(Reduced)
Other equity-Retained 

earnings (Reduced)

CSR Unspent 
Liability
Increase

CSR Unspent Bank(Asset)
Increase

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
(Decrease)

2022-23                    20.46 (20.46)              (20.46)                                                                  30.85 10.38                                       (0.10)                                     

2019-20 to 2021-22                          -                         -   (18.90)                                                                  18.90 -                                          -                                        
Total                    20.46               (20.46)                                      (39.37)                              49.75                                        10.38                                      (0.10)

B) Bonus Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

Bonus 
Expenditure
(Reduced)

Profit
Increased

Bonus Payable
(Reduced)

CWIP
Increased

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
Increase

2022-23                    (2.11)                   2.11 (1.09)                                       1.02                                                                       0.01 

Note: 47

Note: 48

Note: 49

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet)

On account of bonus expenditure as given above the liability was considered more in last year financials , Now it has been rectified in 
comparative figures. Further Rs. 101712 bonus expenditure which is of capital nature has not been capitalized last year now the same has 
been rectified in comparative figures.

Erroneously bonus expenditure has been considered more by Rs. 210758 in last financials statements on account of error in application of 
accounting policy , As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has restated the comparative 
amounts for the FY 2022-23.

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of 
Profit or loss)

There is no impairment to assets as per Indian Accounting Standard 36 issued by Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Consequently, there is no impairment loss
debited to Profit and Loss account.

Balances in parties’ accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the In-direct Method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard– 7 issued under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet) CSR Unspent Liability and CSR Unspent Bank (Asset) - has been netted off and not shown separately in balance sheet as on 31st March 2023, 
Now it has been rectified in comparative financial statements and detail of the same as given below.

CSR Expenditure has not been considered on accrual basis instead it has been accounted on payment basis from FY 2019-20 to FY 2022-23 
due to error in application of accounting policy. As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has 
restated the comparative amounts for the FY 2022-23 and restated the opening balances of liability and equity(i.e on 1st April 2022) for the 
errors pertaining to FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22 as given below

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of 
Profit or loss)

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. 
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the 
consolidated financial statements including material accounting policy 
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
“consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") 
and other Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its Profit, total comprehensive 
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the independence requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
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ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on consolidated 
financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.  

 

A) Provisions for taxation, litigation, and other significant provisions 

 Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make 
judgements and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range 
of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer pricing arrangements, claims, 
general legal proceedings, environmental issues, and other eventualities arising in 
the regular course of business. 

 The key judgement lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ 
from the future obligations. By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes 
many variables. Additionally, depending on timing, there is a risk that costs could 
be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed. 

 

How the matter was addressed in Our audit procedures included: 

 We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions. 

 We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in 
light of the nature of the exposures, applicable regulations, and related 
correspondence with the authorities. 

  We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by 
management which impacted their estimate of the provisions required, considering 
judgements previously made by the authorities in the relevant jurisdictions or any 
relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors and assessing whether there 
was an indication of management bias. 

 We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the 
Company’s internal tax and legal team. 
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 We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to 
accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared 
with the outcome. 

 

B)  Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims 

 The Company is periodically subject to challenges / scrutiny on range of 
matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, and transfer pricing arrangements. 

 Further, potential exposures may also arise from general legal proceedings, 
environmental issues etc. in the normal course of business. 

 Assessment of contingent liabilities disclosure requires Management to make 
judgements and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures. Whether the 
liability is inherently uncertain, the amounts involved are potentially significant 
and the application of accounting standards to determine the amount, if any, to be 
provided as liability, is inherently subjective. 

 

How the matter was addressed in our audit procedures included: 

 We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recording and re-assessment 
of contingent liabilities. 

 We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material contingent 
liabilities in light of the nature of exposures, applicable regulations, and related 
correspondence with the authorities. 

 We discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of significant 
litigation and claims with the Company’s internal legal team including their views 
on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim and the magnitude of potential 
exposure and sighted any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors. 

 We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made. 

 We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the 
Company’s internal tax and legal team. 

 We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to 
accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared 
with the outcome. 

 

Information Other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
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Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material 
statement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Managements and Board of Directors Responsibility for the consolidated 
financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these  consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the  financial position,  financial 
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 000



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
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March 31,2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is 
disqualified as on March 31,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the auditor’s report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its consolidated financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and same has been 
transferred accordingly. 

iv. (a) The respective managements of holding and subsidiary has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 

 



(b) The respective managements of holding and subsidiary has represented, 
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared and paid by the holding company during the year by 
the company is in compliance with sec 123 of the companies act 2013 to the 
extent it applies to payment of dividend. 

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course 
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the 
Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and 
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries 
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which 
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or 
adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

 

                                                                                                   For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                         Chartered Accountants  

                                                                                       Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                            Rakesh Kumar Jain 
                                      Partner 

          Membership No: 106109 
Place: Surat                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496 
Date: 30/05/2024  

 



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B&B 
TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED ("the company”) as of March 31, 2024, 
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

 

 



 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the  consolidated financial statements. 



 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 

                                                                                      

 

                                                                                                   For, PARY & CO., 
                                                                                         Chartered Accountants  

                                                                                       Firm Reg. No. 007288C 
 

 

                                                                                            Rakesh Kumar Jain 
                                      Partner 

          Membership No: 106109 
Place: Surat                                          UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496 
Date: 30/05/2024  

 

 



(₹ in lakhs)
Note 
No.

As at March 31, 
2024 As at March 31, 2023

I ASSETS
Non Current Assets
 a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4      6583.01 5806.39
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4      14985.67 5970.82
(c) Investment Property 5      71.01 75.82
(d) Other Intangible Assets 4      35.73 40.55
(e) Financial Assets
    (i) Other Financial Assets 6      196.49 144.80
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 7      66.17 0.00
(g) Other Non Current Assets 8      737.25 2388.46
Total Non Current Assets 22675.32 14426.84

Current Assets
a) Inventories 9      5260.39 6031.11
b) Financial Assets
    i) Trade receivables 10    7887.97 5764.04
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11    15.92 148.03
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 12    44.12 46.53
   v) Other Financial Assets 13    48.32 37.59
c) Other Current Assets 14    506.21 937.63
Total Current Assets 13762.93 12964.94

TOTAL - ASSETS 36438.25 27391.78
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1) EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 15    2051.12 2051.12
b)  Other Equity 16    9912.55 8365.36
c) Non Controlling Interest 17    (39.24)                        29.82

Total Equity 11924.43 10446.31

2) LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 18    12383.72 8315.82
    ia) Lease Liabilities 19    32.84 30.75
b) Provisions 20    25.41 13.48
c ) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21    -                              15.05
d) Other Non Current Liabilities 22    3.86 5.78

Total Non Current Liabilities 12445.82 8380.88

Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 23    6505.38 4759.05
   ii) Trade Payables 24    

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise & 
small enterprise 2160.30 2.11
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro small enterprises 2020.61 3240.03

   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 25    0.82 0.82
b) Other Current Liabilities 26    1236.70 488.67
d) Current Tax  Liabilities (Net) 28    144.19 73.91

Total Current liabilities 12068.00 8564.59
     Total Liabilities 24513.82 16945.47

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36438.25 27391.78
Material Accounting Policy Information 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED For PARY & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024

As per our report of even date 

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2024

Particulars



(₹ in lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

I Revenue from operations 29     37,539.43                       33,654.44                      
II Other Income 30     90.40                              95.78                             
III Total Revenue (I +II) 37,629.83                       33,750.23                      

IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 31     26,723.36                       25,042.55                      
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-
progress 32     

86.39                              (208.54)                          
Employee benefits expense 33     2,595.20                         2,007.32                        
Finance costs 34     681.99                            625.62                           
Depreciation and amortization expense 4       1,045.26                         898.07                           
Other expenses 35     4,189.98                         2,981.50                        

Total Expenses 35,322.18                       31,346.52                      
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 2,307.65                         2,403.71                        
VI Exceptional items

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI) 2,307.65                         2,403.71                        
VIII Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 21 703.73                            651.39                           
(2) Deferred tax 21 (82.58)                             (40.05)                            
(3) Prior Period tax (3.48)                               -                                 

Total tax expense 617.67                            611.34                           
IX Profit for the period (VII - VIII) 1,689.98                         1,792.37                        

X Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
   (a) Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 36 (5.39)                               4.53                               

      (b) Income tax on (a) above 36 (1.36)                               1.37                               
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                  -                                 

Total - Other comprehensive income (6.75)                               5.90                               

XI Total comprehensive income for the year  [(IX)+(X)] 1,683.23                         1,798.27                        
Profit/(Loss) Attributable to the 
   a) Owners of the Company 1,752.30                         1,798.45                        
   b) Non Controlling Interest (69.06)                             (0.18)                              

XII Earning per equity share of Rs 10 each
(1) Basic 37 8.54                                 8.77                                
(2) Diluted 37 8.54                                 8.77                                

Material Accounting Policy Information 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

Partner
Membership No : 106109

UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024

For PARY & CO.,
As per our report of even date 

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN



(₹ in lakhs)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024  For the year ended March 31, 2023 

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) after tax 1689.98 1792.37
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation / Amortization 1045.26 898.07
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (6.78)                            (8.46)                                                     
Interest Expenses 681.99                         625.62                                                  
Rental Income (64.47)                          (61.49)                                                   
Interest Income (7.88)                            (5.19)                                                     
Provision for Income Tax 619.02                         611.34                                                  
Other Comprehensive Income (6.75)                            5.90                                                      

Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,950.37                      3,858.15                                               
Movements in working Capital :
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 938.77                         721.07                                                  
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities 748.03                         (18.76)                                                   
(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current/Current Provisions 11.94                           (6.25)                                                     
(Decrease) / Increase in Lease Liability 2.09                             1.96                                                      
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Non current liabilities (1.93)                            (1.93)                                                     
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non-current assets 1,651.22                      (1,429.18)                                              
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial assets (51.69)                          4.43                                                      
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 770.72                         (979.70)                                                 
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables (2,123.92)                     (692.79)                                                 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Bank balances 2.41                             (18.30)                                                   
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial assets (10.73)                          (15.52)                                                   
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current assets 431.42                         (488.48)                                                 
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations 6,318.69                      934.70                                                  
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 629.97                         772.68                                                  
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities(A) 5,688.72                      162.01                                                  

Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (10,828.46)                   (6,528.81)                                              
Sale of Fixed Assets 8.15                             18.18                                                    
Interest Income 7.88                             5.19                                                      
Rental Income 64.47                           61.49                                                    
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (10,747.95)                   (6,443.94)                                              

Cash Flows from financing activities
Increase (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 4,067.90                      5,674.71                                               
Increase (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings 1,746.33                      1,549.83                                               
Share capital- NCI -                                   30.00                                                    
Dividend paid (205.11)                        (205.11)                                                 
Interest Expense (681.99)                        (625.62)                                                 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C ) 4,927.12                      6,423.81                                               

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (132.11)                        141.88                                                  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 148.03                         6.16                                                      
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 15.92                           148.03                                                  

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 11.43                           5.03                                                      
With Banks 4.49                             143.01                                                  
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.92                           148.03                                                  

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684 Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496

Place : Bangalore Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024 Date : 30 May 2024

For PARY & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

As per our report of even date 



A . Equity Share Capital (₹ in lakhs)
 No. of shares Amount

205.11 2051.12
-                         -                            

205.11 2051.12
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 -                         -                            

205.11 2051.12

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of 
OCI  Total Equity 

-                                 4,712.07                      2,086.15                      (7.30)                     6,790.93                   
-                                 1,792.55                      -                                  -                            1,792.55                   

Prior Period Errors (18.90)                          (18.90)                      
-                                 -                                  -                                  -                            -                               
-                                 -                                  -                                  5.90                      5.90                          
-                                 (205.11)                        -                                  -                            
-                                 1,568.54                      -                                  5.90                      1,574.44                   

-                                 6,280.61                      2,086.15                      (1.39)                     8,365.36                   

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of 
OCI  Total Equity 

-                                 6,280.61                   2,086.15                   (1.39)                   8,365.36                
-                                 1,759.05                   -                                -                          1,759.05                

Prior Period Errors -                                -                                -                          -                             
Transfer to General Reserve -                                 -                                -                                -                          -                             

-                                 -                                -                                (6.75)                   (6.75)                      
Dividend Paid for 22-23 -                                 (205.11)                     -                                -                          (205.11)                  

-                                 1,553.93                   -                                (6.75)                   1,547.19                
-                                 7,834.55                   2,086.15                   (8.14)                   9,912.55                

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2024

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Particulars

Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

                                   Particulars
Balance as on 01.04.2022
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023
Balance as on 01.04.2023

Balance as on 31.03.2024

B. Other equity

Balance as on 01.04.2022
Profit for the year 

Transferred to General Reserve
Other comprehensive income
Dividend Paid for 21-22

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 

Balance as on 31.03.2023

 Particulars 

Balance as on 01.04.2023
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2024

Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 007288C

As per our report of even date 
For PARY & CO.,

RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Partner

Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496



B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees(in Lakhs), unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information
The Consolidated financial statements comprise consolidated financial statements of "B&B Triplewall Containers Limited" 
("the Company") and its subsidiary(Collectively referred to as "the Group") for the year ended 31st March 2024.

The Company is a listed entity incorporated in India. The registered office of the company located at SY.NO.263/2/3, 
Marsur Madivala, Kasaba Hobli, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru-562106. 

The Principal activities of the Group consists of manufacture and sale of corrugated boards & boxes and Packaging 
materials.

2 Basis Of Preparation And Measurement
2.1 Statement of compliance

These Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the 
accounting policies during the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the 
time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

 The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Company operates (the ‘functional currency’).

2.3 Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 
which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and 
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.
 

2.4 Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of 
Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of 
assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of 
investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair value measurement of 
financial instruments, these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition, 
employee benefits and provisions and contingent liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies.

Impairment of Financial assets
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is 
indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.



Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

2.5 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new accounting standards or amendments to the existing accounting 
standards. There is no such notification has been published from 01 April, 2024.

3 Material Accounting Policy Information
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements are 
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and 
impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period 
in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital 
work-in-progress”.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written-down-value method based on estimated useful life prescribed 
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction 
and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted  prospectively, if appropriate.

3.2 Investment Property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under 
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model. The 
cost of Investment property includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the 
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.



3.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the 
company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. The same are 
amortised over the expected duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.4 Impairment of Non-financial assets - Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does 
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Investments
Non current investments include Investments in subisidiary and these are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27”.

3.6 Inventories 
Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stores & Spares, Tools valued at the lower of cost or 
net realisable value (except scrap/waste which are value at net realisable value).
The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

3.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria described below also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when control of goods being sold is transferred to customer and where there 
are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are considered as fulfilled in accordance 
with the terms agreed with the respective customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on transaction price excluding estimates of variable consideration that is 
allocated to performance obligations. Sales as disclosed, are exclusive of Goods and Services Tax.

The company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The 
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring 
promised goods to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes collected on behalf 
of government). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable 
consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.
The transaction price is allocated by the company to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of 
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods to the customer.

Sale of services
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.
Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income
Rental income from investment properties s is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

3.8 Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. 
Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related 
to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is 
included in Other Income.



Current income taxes
Current income tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates 
for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years.
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid 
and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where there is an intention to settle the asset and the 
liability on a net basis. 

Deferred income taxes
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the orresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be 
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority.

3.9 Leases
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as 
an expense in line with the contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership to the lessee.

“Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to 
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the 
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend 
or terminate the contract will be exercised.  Accordingly, it recognises the Right of use asset as well as Lease obligations 
considering the lease agreement”

4.0 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of 
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing  costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.10 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of  past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.



If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

3.12 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non - cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, 
financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.13 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, 
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

3.14 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.14 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, superannuation 
scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made 
as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain 
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond 
the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans
The Company provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, and compensated absences, in 
respect of certain employees. All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance 
Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Company’s net 
obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the 
cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as 
past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss). The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset is charged or credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  Any changes in the liabilities over the 
year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in 
‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.



3.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. 

A. Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and
measured at - Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. In case of Financial assets which are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are
subsequently classified and measued at:
 - amortised cost 
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
 - fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

[a] Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
[b] Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
income through the expected life of financial instrument.
[c] Debt Instruments
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
[i] Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if
any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[ii] Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[iii] Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



[d] Equity Instruments:
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, 
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.
The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is
recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument
at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI.
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the
investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Asset
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:

i. Trade receivables
ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance.
In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount
equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an
amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months
from the reporting date.
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and
is adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are updated.
ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

B. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities
are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.



Note: 4
4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land Building Plant and equipment Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Office Equipment Electric Installations Computer Equipment Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 818.06 2436.60 7524.27 72.61 116.12 69.57 465.99 74.40 11577.62
Additions During the year -                                      101.05                                   1,395.45                              6.70                                     103.39                      11.32                      180.72                        13.75                             1,812.39                   
Deletions during the year -                                         (11.25)                                  (0.60)                         (11.85)                       
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 818.06                            2,537.65                                8,908.47                              79.31                                   218.91                      80.89                      646.71                        88.15                             13,378.16                 

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                                         (1,000.72)                               (4,272.10)                             (49.53)                                  (42.69)                       (59.81)                    (290.99)                       (55.39)                           (5,771.23)                  
Current Year Depreciation -                                         (143.10)                                  (745.33)                                (6.94)                                    (35.87)                       (5.80)                      (82.42)                         (14.93)                           (1,034.40)                  
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 9.95                                     0.53                          10.48                        
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2024 -                                         (1,143.82)                               (5,007.48)                             (56.47)                                  (78.04)                       (65.61)                    (373.41)                       (70.32)                           (6,795.15)                  

Net Block as on April 1,2023 818.06                            1,435.88                                3,252.17                              23.08                                   73.43                        9.76                        175.00                        19.01                             5,806.39                   
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 818.06                            1,393.83                                3,900.99                              22.84                                   140.87                      15.28                      273.30                        17.83                             6,583.01                   

Particulars Land Building Plant and equipment Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Office Equipment Electric Installations Computer Equipment Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 818.06                            2,364.58                                6,571.54                              63.29                                   48.61                        65.22                      339.80                        52.74                             10,323.84                 
Additions During the Financial Year -                                         72.02                                     1,027.88                              9.32                                     67.51                        4.35                        126.19                        21.65                             1,328.93                   
Deletions during the financial year -                                         -                                                 (75.15)                                  -                                               -                                   -                                -                                     -                                        (75.15)                       
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 818.06                            2,436.60                                7,524.27                              72.61                                   116.12                      69.57                      465.99                        74.40                             11,577.62                 

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 -                                         (853.80)                                  (3,680.96)                             (43.70)                                  (29.77)                       (53.46)                    (242.84)                       (46.95)                           (4,951.49)                  
Current Year Depreciation -                                         (146.92)                                  (656.58)                                (5.83)                                    (12.92)                       (6.34)                      (48.15)                         (8.44)                             (885.18)                     
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 65.44                                   65.44                        
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 -                                         (1,000.72)                               (4,272.10)                             (49.53)                                  (42.69)                       (59.81)                    (290.99)                       (55.39)                           (5,771.23)                  

Net Block as on April 1,2022 818.06                            1,510.78                                2,890.57                              19.59                                   18.84                        11.76                      96.96                          5.79                               5,372.35                   
Net Block as on March 31,2023 818.06                            1,435.88                                3,252.17                              23.08                                   73.43                        9.76                        175.00                        19.01                             5,806.39                   

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the Period ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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4.2         (b) Capital Work in Progress

Particulars
 CWIP- Plant & 
Machinery 

 CWIP- Building 
Development 

 CWIP- Electrical 
Installation 

 CWIP - Furniture and 
Fixtures 

 CWIP - Office 
Equipment  CWIP - Vehicles 

 CWIP - Computer 
Equipment  Total 

Project Cost as on April 1, 2023 4,350.07                         1,484.36                                 131.46                                  0.11                                     -                                 -                              4.83                            5,970.82                        
Additions During the year 7,163.06                         1,501.01                                 1,431.04                               10.34                                   4.16                           56.59                      13.85                          10,180.05                      
Capitalized during the year (988.44)                           (68.58)                                    (90.23)                                  (5.34)                                    (2.82)                         (1.16)                       (8.64)                           (1,165.21)                       
Project Cost as on March 31, 2024 10,524.70                       2,916.79                                 1,472.26                               5.11                                     1.34                           55.43                      10.04                          14,985.67                      

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

 Less than
1 year 1-2 years

 2-3
years 

 More than 3
years  Total 

Projects in progress 9,014.85                         5,970.82                                 -                                                -                                               14,985.67                 
 Projects temporarily suspended 

Particulars
 CWIP- Plant & 
Machinery 

 CWIP- Building 
Development 

 CWIP- Electrical 
Installation 

 CWIP - Furniture and 
Fixtures 

 CWIP - Computer 
Equipment Total

Project Cost as on April 1, 2022 630.53                            7.94                                        85.99                                    -                                               724.46                    
Additions During the Financial Year 4,350.07                         1,548.44                                 171.66                                  0.11                                     4.83                           6,075.10                 
Capitalized during the financial year (630.53)                           (72.02)                                    (126.19)                                -                                               (828.74)                  
Project Cost as on March 31, 2023 4,350.07                         1,484.36                                 131.46                                  0.11                                     4.83                           5,970.82                 

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

 Less than
1 year 1-2 years

 2-3
years 

 More than 3
years  Total 

Projects in progress 5,970.82                         -                                                  -                                                -                                               5,970.82                    
 Projects temporarily suspended -                                          -                                                  -                                                -                                               -                                    

 CWIP  
 Amount in CWIP for a period of 

The changes in the carrying value of Work in progress for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

 CWIP  
 Amount in CWIP for a period of 

The changes in the carrying value of Work in progress for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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4.3         Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 75.49                             75.49                                    
Additions during Year 1.22                               1.22                                      
Deletions during Year -                                                 
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 76.72                             76.72                                    

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 (34.95)                            (34.95)                                   
Current Year Depreciation (6.04)                              (6.04)                                     
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                                                 
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 (40.99)                            (40.99)                                   

Net Block as on April 1,2023 40.55                             40.55                                    
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 35.73                             35.73                                    

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 73.75                             73.75                                    
Addition During the financial Year 1.92                               1.92                                      
Deletion during the financial year (0.18)                              (0.18)                                     
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 75.49                             75.49                                    

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 (27.54)                            (27.54)                                   
Current Year Depreciation (7.58)                              (7.58)                                     
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions 0.17                               0.17                                      
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 (34.95)                            (34.95)                                   

Net Block as on April 1,2022 46.21                             46.21                                    
Net Block as on March 31,2023 40.55                             40.55                                    

The changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the Period ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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Note: 5
Investment Property

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 24.81                    185.68                    210.49                     
Additions During the Year -                                   
Deletions during the Year -                                   
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 24.81                    185.68                    210.49                     

Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                               (134.67)                   (134.67)                    
Current Year Depreciation (4.81)                       (4.81)                        
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                                   
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 -                               (139.48)                   (139.48)                    

-                                   
Net Block as on April 1,2023 24.81                    51.01                      75.82                       
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 24.81                    46.20                      71.01                       

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2022 24.81                    185.68                    210.49                     
Additions During the Financial Year -                                   
Deletions during the financial year -                                   
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2023 24.81                    185.68                    210.49                     

-                                   
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2022 -                               (129.35)                   (129.35)                    
Current Year Depreciation -                               (5.31)                       (5.31)                        
Accumulated Depreciation on deletion -                                   
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31,2023 -                               (134.67)                   (134.67)                    

-                                   
Net Block as on April 1,2022 24.81                    56.33                      81.14                       
Net Block as on March 31,2023 24.81                    51.01                      75.82                       

Notes : 
1) The Company’s investment properties consists of commercial properties in India.
2) Company’s investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulates impairment losses.
3) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties:

 Particulars  As at March 31, 
2024 

 As at March 31, 
2023 

Rental income derived from Investment properties 64.47                    61.49                      
Direct operating expenses (0.39)                    (0.41)                       
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 64.08                    61.09                      
Less : Depreciation (4.81)                    (5.31)                       

 Profit arising from investment properties  59.26                    55.77                      

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the period ended  March 31, 2024  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the year ended March 31, 2023  were as follows:
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(₹ in lakhs)

Note: 15

No. of Shares Amount in Rs No. of Shares Amount in Rs
(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 220.00 2200.00 220.00 2200.00
Preference Share Capital of Rs 1000 each 0.30 300.00 0.30 300.00

Total - Authorised Share Capital 220.30 2500.00 220.30 2500.00

(b)Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital comprises:
(i) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12

(c) Reconciliation statement of Shares Outstanding
Opening Balance 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12
Additions
(a) Fresh Issue -                 -                        -                 -                             
(b) Bonus Share -                 -                        -                 -                             
(c) Right Share -                 -                        -                 -                             
Deletions -                 -                        -                 -                             
Closing 205.11 2051.12 205.11 2051.12

(a) Details of share held by each shareholder, holding more than 5% shares

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

22.76 11.10% 22.76 11.10%
13.86 6.76% 13.86 6.76%
12.07 5.89% 12.07 5.89%
12.25 5.97% 12.25 5.97%
10.97 5.35% 10.97 5.35%

b ) Details of Promoters Shareholding

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 
Percentage of 
Change during 
the year

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:
Manish Kumar Gupta 0.00% 13.86 6.76% 13.86 6.76%
Nishant Bothra 0.00% 12.25 5.97% 12.25 5.97%
Sidharth Agarwal 0.00% 10.15 4.95% 10.15 4.95%
Amit Agarwal 0.00% 8.10 3.95% 8.10 3.95%
Ravi Agarwal 0.00% 6.50 3.17% 6.50 3.17%
Alok Agarwal 0.00% 5.76 2.81% 5.76 2.81%
Manish Bothra 0.00% 0.58 0.28% 0.58 0.28%

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(d) The share capital of the company comprises solely of equity shares.  The rights, privileges and restrictions on such shares are those as provided normally under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(e)The company does not have any holding company. Hence, disclosure regarding number of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, 
their subsidiary and associates does not arise.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:

Alka Gupta
Manish Kumar Gupta
Jyoti Bothra
Nishant Bothra
Champa Bothra
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Note: 6
Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Security Deposits 196.49 144.80

Total Other Non Current Financial Assets 196.49 144.80

Note: 7
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
                                           -   

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961 35.61                                            -   
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments (20.14)                                                                           -   
Related to Income Tax unabsorbed losses 49.15
Related to IND AS Adjustments 1.55                                            -   

Total Deferred Taxes 66.17 -                                         

Note: 8
Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Advances 729.13 2388.46
Ind AS Prepaid Rent 8.12                                            -   

Total Other non-current assets 737.25 2388.46

Note: 9
Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Raw Materials 3040.77 3752.42
Work-in-Progress 134.15 182.12
Finished goods 984.24 1022.66
Stores and Spares, Tools and Others 1083.76 1060.91
Stock of Scrap 17.47 13.00

Total Inventories 5260.39 6031.11

Note: 10
Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Trade Receivables- Secured

Trade Receivables- Unsecured
 - 9.1  Considered good
(a)  Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good                                            -   
Less than 6 months 7468.76 5240.44
6 months – 1 year 302.91 413.99
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
(b) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk                                            -   
Less than 6 months                                            -   
6 months – 1 year                                            -   
1-2 years 149.23 135.26
2-3 years 33.19 50.29
More than 3 years 50.18 31.81
 -   Less:- Provision for doubtful debts (116.30)                              (107.74)                               

Total Trade receivables 7887.97 5764.04

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2024
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Note: 11
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Cash on hand 11.43 5.03
Balances with banks

-  In current account 4.49 143.01

Total Cash and bank balance 15.92 148.03

Note: 12
Other Bank Balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Other Fixed deposit with Banks 2.57 36.13
Earmarked balances with banks 41.55 10.40

Total Other  bank balances 44.12 46.53

Note: 13
Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Loans & Advances to Employees 48.32 37.59

Total Other Current Financial Assets 48.32 37.59

Note: 14
Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Advances given to Suppliers of Goods 100.74 155.81
Balance with Govt. Authorities 277.15 645.12
Prepaid Expenses 128.31 134.66
Other Receivables -                                      2.05

Total Other Current Assets 506.21 937.63

Note: 16
Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Share Premium
Opening Balance 2,086.15                            2,086.15                             
Less: Utilised/ transferred during the year                                            -                                              -   

Closing Balance 2,086.15                            2,086.15                             

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 6,280.61                            4,712.07                             
Add: Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year 1,759.05                            1,792.55                             
Less: Prior Period Error -                                     (18.90)                                 
Dividend Payment (205.11)                              (205.11)                               

Closing Balance 7,834.55                            6,280.61                             

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans :
Opening Balance (1.39)                                  (7.30)                                   
Add or Less : Transactions during the year (6.75)                                  5.90                                    

Closing Balance (8.14)                                  (1.39)                                   
Total Other Equity 9912.55 8365.36

Note: 17
Non Controlling interest

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening non controlling interest 29.82 30.00
Share of Profit/(loss) for the year (69.06)                                (0.18)                                   

Total Non Controlling interest (39.24)                                29.82                                  
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Note: 18
Non Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1.5 % Cumulative Non-Convertible Non-Participating Redeemable Preference shares 
of Rs.1000 50.14 48.07

Secured
Term Loans-
  From Bank** 6418.93 4227.86
Unsecured                                            -   
Loans and Advances From Related Parties**** 1765.00 1673.25
Loans and Advances From Directors**** 1601.00 1312.50
Inter-corporate Borrowings*** 2548.65 1054.15

Total Non Current Borrowings 12383.72 8315.82

Notes:

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

Note: 19
Lease Liability

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Rental Deposit 32.84 30.75

Total Non Current Provisions 32.84 30.75

Note: 20
Non Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

a) Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity 25.41 13.48

Total Non Current Provisions 25.41 13.48

* 5,467 1.5 % preference shares have been issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares without payment being received in cash to the equity
shareholders of B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (formerly known as B&B Triplewall Containers Private Limited,) as at January 8, 2016 in
terms of the scheme of amalgamation ('the Scheme') sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature at Karnataka vide Order dated January 8,
2016. Company may redeem these preference shares after the completion of 3 years from the date of issue at it's option. There is no any
redemption during the current financial year.

b) The remaining outstanding of Rs.48.65 Lakhs inter corporate loan is from Amit Packs Private Limited (related party) which is unsecured 
and it carries rate of interest at 15% p.a.

** Details of securities given in respect of term loans and short term borrowings from banks:
All the term loans from banks are primarily secured by first charge of hypothecation on / mortgage of the assets financed under the
respective term loans. Besides this, following assets are given as common collateral security for the term loans and short term borrowings
from banks, namely, -
First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets exclusively financed by other banks.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at No. 86, KIADB Industrial Area, Bommasandra Jigani Link Road, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy. No. 263 2/3, Marsur Madival Village, Near Attibele Industrial Area, 
Anekal Taluk, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy No. 75 -1A2/1B1 & 73-2A Thyagarasanapalli (Shoolagiri) Hosur Taluk, 
Krishnagiri District, TN .

Leasehold land Plot no B-8, B-12 to B-18 Sipcot Industrial Complex Bargur, Parandapalli Village, Pochampali Taluk, Krishnagiri District Tamil 
Nadu 635206.
Personal Guarantee of Promoters / Directors / KMP / Shareholders (Relatives of Directors / KMPs) of the equity shareholding namely Alok
Agarwal, Amit Agarwal, Manish Bothra, Nishant Bothra, Ravi Agarwal, Sidharth Agarwal, Manish Kumar Gupta.

The Rate of interest on term loans varies from 8.6% p.a to 9.3% p.a

*** Terms & Conditions for Inter Corporate Borrowing
a) Outstanding unsecured inter corporate loan(Including current maturities) of Rs.3000 Lakhs is from Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd ,Out of Which 
Rs. 2000 Lakhs is  repayable over a period of 3 years with rate of interest 11.75% p.a and Rs. 1000 lakhs is repayable after two 2 years with rate 
of interest 11.25% p.a.

**** Terms & Conditions for Loans & Advances from related parties and directors
Loans and Advances from related parties and directors are repayable after 31st March 2025, These loans carries rate of interest at 12% to 
15%p.a,
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Note: 21
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961                                            -   (30.51)                                 
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments                                            -   46.36
Related to IND AS Adjustments                                            -   (0.80)                                   

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities -                                        15.05

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying 
the statutory income tax rate to the income before income taxes is summarized 
below :

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Profit before income taxes 2307.65 2403.71
Enacted tax rates in India 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense 580.79 604.97
Tax effects on adjustments which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable 
income :
Interest on delayed payment of income tax & Penalties 2.24 6.75
CSR expenses 13.02 4.81
Other effects 25.10 (5.19)                                   
Total impact 40.36 6.37

Current Tax 703.73 651.39
Deferred Tax (40.05)                                 

Income tax expense as per P&L (Current + Deferred tax) 621.15 611.34

Note: 22
Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance Rent Received 3.86 5.78

Total Non Current Provisions 3.86 5.78

Note: 23
Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Secured :
Loans repayable on demand
-   From Bank
   -     Working capital loan* 3424.31 3475.56
 -   From Other Parties** 1000.00 1000.00
Current Maturities of long term debt*** 2081.07 283.49

Total Current Borrowings 6505.38 4759.05

Note:

These loans carries interest rate at 9.3% p.a

*** Out of total current maturities of long term Rs. 1581.07 Lakhs are from banks and Rs. 500 Lakhs are Inter corporate borrowings .

First Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Current Assets of the company, Second Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Fixed Assets of 
the company, Unconditional and irrevocable Personal Guarantee from the Promoters, Demand Promissory note and Letter of Continuity, 
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Manish Gupta, Mr. Ravi Agarwal,  Mr.  Manish Bothra and Mr. Alok Aggarwal.

These loan carries interest rate at HDFC bank 3 months MCLR+XX% spread p.a.

* Working Capital Loans from Banks are secured by the following assets:

Hypothecation of all the current assets of the Company comprising, inter alia, of inventories of raw material, work-in-progress and finished 
goods, trade receivables, book debts and other current assets.
Common collateral securities are given in respect of the term loans (see Note 12 above on Non-Current Borrowing) and working capital loans 
from banks. Please refer sub-note  under Note 12 above on Long Term Borrowings for details of common collateral securities given in respect 
of the Working Capital Loans From Banks.

** Loans from other party is taken from Bajaj Finance Limited (NBFC) which is secured by following assets:
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Note: 24
Trade Payables

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(i) MSME
 Less than 1year 2158.18 2.11

1-2 years 2.11 0.00
 2-3years                                            -                                              -   

 More than 3 years                                            -                                              -   
(ii) Others
10.2 (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

                                           -   

 Less than 1year 1986.07 3193.08
1-2 years 33.92 46.95

 2-3years 0.63 0.00
 More than 3 years                                            -                                              -   

 Total Trade Payables 4180.91 3242.14

Note: 25
Other Current Financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Preference Dividend payable 0.82 0.82

Total  Other Current Financial Liabilities 0.82 0.82

Note: 26
Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Statutory Dues 285.11 106.21
Advance from Customers 12.06 12.18
Payable for Expenses 846.49 318.59
Advance Rent Received 1.93 1.93
Unpaid Dividend Payable 0.19 0.02
Unspent CSR Liability 90.92 49.75

Total Other Current Liabilities 1236.70 488.67

Note: 27
Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
a) Provision for Employee benefits                                            -   
Gratuity 0.001                                            -   

Total Current Provisions 0.001                                            -   

Note: 28
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Provision for Taxation 703.73 651.39
Less : Advance Income tax (Inc  TDS receivable)                                   (559.54)                                   (577.47)

Total Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 144.19 73.91
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Note: 29
Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Sale of Products 37533.66 33644.90
Sale of Services 5.78 9.54

Total 37539.43 33654.44

Note: 30
Other Income

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Interest Income 7.88 5.19
Profit on foreign exchange 11.26 20.64
Profit on Sale of Assets 6.78 8.46
Rental Income 64.47 61.49

Total 90.40 95.78

Note: 31
Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Opening Stock of Raw Material 3752.42 3327.56
Add:- Purchases (Net) 26526.79 26378.59
Add:- Freight Charges 640.79 514.09
Less :-Sale of scrap                           (1,292.09)                           (1,541.29)
Add:- Custom Duty 136.22 116.01
Less:- Closing Stock of Raw Material 3040.77 3752.42

Total 26723.36 25042.55

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Imported/Indigenous Consumption
Raw Material Consumed
Imported 382.20 1283.61
Indigenous 26341.17 23758.94

26723.36 25042.55

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 1% 5%
Indigenous 99% 95%

Component, Stores and Spare Consumed
Imported 196.99 160.51
Indigenous 315.96 65.56

512.96 226.07

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 38% 71%
Indigenous 62% 29%

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements as at  31st March 2024
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Note: 32
Changes of inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Opening Inventory
Finished Goods 1022.66 919.54
Work-in-Progress 182.12 76.70

Closing Inventory
Finished Goods 984.24 1022.66
Work-in-Progress 134.15 182.12

Net (Increase)/Decrease 86.39 -208.54

Note: 33
Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Salaries to Directors 228.00 228.00
Salaries and Wages - Others 1988.13 1473.58
Contribution to Provident Fund 89.44 65.99
Contribution to ESI Fund 17.03 15.38
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 147.10 129.01
Bonus 88.95 67.07
Gratuity 36.55 28.28

Total 2595.20 2007.32

Note: 34
Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

1) Interest Expenses
Bank - on borrowings 164.83 229.00
Others - on borrowings 497.48 364.27
Others - delayed payment of taxes other than IT 1.02 1.05
Others - delayed payment of IT 5.94 25.79
Other borrowing Cost 9.83 2.73

2) Preference Dividend 2.89 2.78
Total 681.99 625.62

Note: 35
Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Payment made to Auditors
 As auditors - Statutory Audit 4.25 4.00
 As auditors - Tax Audit 1.25 1.25

Total (A) 5.50 5.25

Manufacturing Expenses
Consumable Stores & Spares 512.96 196.15
Die and Sterio Expenses 177.82 194.99
Power and Fuel 804.36 674.40
Repairs and maintenance on building 22.15 17.32
Repairs and maintenance on machinery 171.80 116.74
Job Work Expenses 3.51 0.00
Security Service Charges 74.62 56.06

Total (B) 1767.22 1255.65
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Selling & Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses 2.46 1.74
CFA Commission & Reimbursements 49.40 28.61
Carriage Outwards 1660.58 1204.44
Advertisment expenses 2.38 1.52

Total (C) 1714.83 1236.32

Other Expenses
Rent 280.72 120.37
Rates and Taxes 36.09 18.81
CSR Expenditure 51.74 39.59
Office Expenses 69.99 54.16
Travelling and conveyance 108.58 101.87
Membership & Subscription 0.99 1.24
Legal and professional 37.48 36.32
Repair & Maintenance Other 34.74 26.77
Insurance 42.90 57.05
Communication Expenses 13.43 10.25
Printing and Stationery 13.87 10.33
Provision For Bad Debts 8.56 4.06
Loss on High Sea Sales 2.74 0.00
Testing Charges 0.20 3.20
Miscellaneous expenses 0.41 0.25

Total (D) 702.43 484.27
Total (A+B+C+D) 4189.98 2981.50

Note: 36
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans                                  (5.39)                                    4.53 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                  (1.36)                                    1.37 

Total (6.75)                                 5.90                                  

Note: 37
Earning Per Share

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Net profit for the year 1752.30 1798.45
Nominal value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 205.11 205.11
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 205.11 205.11
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic earning per share & 
diluted earning per share 205.11 205.11
Basic earning per share 8.54                                  8.77                                  
Diluted earning per share 8.54                                  8.77                                  
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Note: 38

a) Contingent liabilities not provided for :

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Income Tax 
Act 45.83 45.83

Income Tax 
Act 100.49                                             -   

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Income Tax 
Act 63.93 63.93

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
1831.31 3250.00

Note: 39
Foreign Currency Income & Expenditure

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

301.30 1283.61
196.99 160.51
935.01 990.35

LEI renewal charges 0.03 0.04

Earnings in Foreign Exchange:
-                                            -                                          

Note: 40
Payment To Auditors

2023-24 2022-23
4.25 4.00
1.25 1.25

Note: 41
Leases
a. Company as a Lessor

2023-24 2022-23
62.54 59.56

65.67 62.54
128.79 194.46

-                                            -                                          

b. Company as a Lessee

2023-24 2022-23
278.07 118.05

226.64 129.64
1190.70 836.37

474.84 647.44

Note: 42

Information about products and services

Information about major customers

Nature of Dues Authority Where it is pending

B&B Triplewall Containers Limited manufactures and supplies paper container packaging products. The Company offers corrugated box, boards, and sheets.

   -  Later than one year and not later than five years
   -  Later than five years

Above 10% sales or purchases to one person
There are two companies from which the company earns more than 10% of its revenue.

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease
   -  Not later than one year
   -  Later than one year and not later than five years

Ind AS-108  Operating Segments
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating officer i.e.
Managing director of the company. 
On review of operations, it is identified that the company has only one segment.

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements as at  March 31,2024

Particulars
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit

Disputes pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Income Tax Order(AY 2013-14) High Court of Karnataka

b) Commitments :

Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending

Income Tax Order (AY 2017-18) Commissioner of Income Tax(Appeals)

Income Tax Order(AY 2016-17) DCIT/ACIT(Rectification Filed u/s 154 on Income Tax Act 1961)

Undisputed dues pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

   -  Later than five years

Lease receipts recognised in statement of profit and loss

The Company has taken various premises on operating lease. The lease agreements is for a period of 11 months to 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually 
agreeable terms.

Particulars
Lease payments recognised in statement of profit and loss

   -  Not later than one year
Future minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating lease

Particulars
Commitments on capital account

Particulars

Value of Imports on CIF Basis in respect of
Raw Materials
Stores, Chemicals and Packing Materials
Capital Goods

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

FOB Value of Export

The Company has given building on operating lease. The lease agreement is for a period of 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms and 2.8 years 
of lease term is left as on 31st March 2024 . The particulars in respect of such lease is as follows:-

Particulars

* The above demand is raised by the income tax department on account of non consideration of TDS credit of the enterprise which is merged into the company.
The Company has filed application with DCIT/ACIT for rectification order.
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Note: 43
Comparative statement of of Quarterly returns of Current Asset  submitted to the bank in relation to books of accounts

Particulars   Books 
 Statement  to 
bank 

 Variance(Rs. 
In Lakhs)  Period 

Debtors 5769.75 5766.38                   3.38 QTR-1

Inventory 5443.35 5443.35                       -   QTR-1

Debtors 6464.62 6461.18                   3.44 QTR-2

Inventory 5446.30 5446.30                       -   QTR-2

Debtors 5991.60 5956.16                 35.44 QTR-3

Inventory 5287.32 5287.32                       -   QTR-3

Debtors 7780.05 7780.20                  (0.15) QTR-4

Inventory 5075.08 5075.08                       -   QTR-4

Note: 44
Corporate Social Responsibility
Sl.No 2023-24 2022-23

1 51.74 39.59
2 Amount of expenditure incurred 2.18 0.22
3 Shortfall at the end of the year 49.56 39.37
4 Total of previous years shortfall 41.36 10.38

5 Reason for shortfall

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a period 
of time.

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a 
period of time.

6  Rural Development  Rural Development 

7 NA NA

8 NA NA

Note: 45
Prior Period Errors

A) CSR Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

CSR 
Expenditure

Increase
Profit

(Reduced)
Other equity-Retained 

earnings (Reduced)

CSR Unspent 
Liability
Increase

CSR Unspent Bank(Asset)
Increase

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
(Decrease)

2022-23 20.46                (20.46) (20.46)                                      30.85 10.38 (0.10)                                      

2019-20 to 2021-22                           -                           - (18.90)                                      18.90 -                                            -                                         
Total 20.46                (20.46)                                       (39.37) 49.75 10.38                                       (0.10)

B) Bonus Expenditure
Disclosure as per Ind As 8:

Change in each item of financial statements on account of above error correction restatements:

Financial Year

Bonus 
Expenditure
(Reduced)

Profit
Increased

Bonus Payable
(Reduced)

CWIP
Increased

EPS(Basic and Diluted)
Increase

2022-23                     (2.11)                   2.11 (1.09)                                        1.02                                                                          0.01 

Note: 46

Note: 47

Note: 48

Erroneously bonus expenditure has been considered more by Rs. 210758 in last financials statements on account of error in application of 
accounting policy , As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has restated the comparative 
amounts for the FY 2022-23.

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet)

On account of bonus expenditure as given above the liability was considered more in last year financials , Now it has been rectified in 
comparative figures. Further Rs. 101712 bonus expenditure which is of capital nature has not been capitalized last year now the same has 
been rectified in comparative figures.

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of Profit 
or loss)

There is no impairment to assets as per Indian Accounting Standard 36 issued by Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Consequently, there is no impairment loss
debited to Profit and Loss account.

Balances in parties’ accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the In-direct Method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard– 7 issued under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Nature of the Error 
(Having impact on Comparative 

Balance sheet) CSR Unspent Liability and CSR Unspent Bank (Asset) - has been netted off and not shown separately in balance sheet as on 31st March 2023, 
Now it has been rectified in comparative financial statements and detail of the same as given below.

Reason for Difference in Debtors Value: The Debtors /Creditors has been reclassified /Regrouped during the year, Which was not considered in the statement submitted to 
bank.

Pariculars

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to 
CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

CSR Expenditure has not been considered on accrual basis instead it has been accounted on payment basis from FY 2019-20 to FY 2022-23 due 
to error in application of accounting policy. As per Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors, The Company has restated 
the comparative amounts for the FY 2022-23 and restated the opening balances of liability and equity(i.e on 1st April 2022) for the errors 
pertaining to FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22 as given below

Nature of the Error
 (Having impact on 

Comparative Statement of Profit 
or loss)

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the 
movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

Nature of CSR activities
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Note: 49
Related Parties Disclosures
As per IND AS 24 , the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

SI NO Relationship
1 Director
2 KMP
3 Director
4 Director
5 KMP
6 Director
7 KMP
8 Relatives of Director
9 Relatives of Director
10 Director is Karta
11 KMP IS KARTA
12 Relatives of Director
13 Relatives of Director
14 Relatives of Director
15 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
16 Director is Karta
17 Relatives of Director
18 Relatives of Director
19 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
20 Relatives of Director
21 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
22 Relatives of Director
23 Relatives of Director
24 Relatives of Director
25 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
26 KMP IS KARTA
27 Relatives of Director
28 Director is Karta
29 Relatives of Director
30 KMP IS KARTA
31 Relatives of Director
32 NIRMAL KUMAR BOTHRA Relatives of Director
33 Relatives of Director
34 QUALIPACK LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
35
36
37
38
39 SINGLA PACKAGING

Disclosure of transactions with related parties

SI NO 2023-24 2022-23
1

358.50 573.00
Alok Agarwal 13.50 8.00
Manish Bothra 40.00 50.00
Manish Kumar Gupta 291.00 455.00
Ravi Agarwal 14.00 60.00

KMP : 10.40 -                                               
Amit Agarwal 10.40 -                                               

Relative of Director: 79.85 -                                               
Alka Gupta 50.00 -                                               
Aarti Agarwal 11.50 -                                               
Nidhi Agarwal 8.35 -                                               
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 10.00 -                                               

RAVI AGARWAL

Name of Related Parties

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements as at  March 31,2024

ALOK AGARWAL
AMIT AGARWAL
MANISH BOTHRA
MANISH KUMAR GUPTA
NISHANT BOTHRA

MOHANLAL AGARWAL

SIDHARTH AGARWAL
AARTI AGARWAL
ALKA GUPTA
ALOK AGARWAL HUF
AMIT AGARWAL HUF
CHAMPA BOTHRA
JYOTI BOTHRA
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL HUF
MANISH BOTHRA HUF
MEERA GUPTA

SIDHARTH AGARWAL HUF

MOHANLAL AGARWAL HUF
NAVAL AGARWAL
NAVAL AGARWAL HUF
NEELAM AGARWAL
NEHA AGARWAL
NIDHI AGARWAL
NIRMAL KUMAR BOTHRA HUF
NISHANT BOTHRA HUF
RANJANA DEVI AGARWAL
RAVI AGARWAL HUF
RITU AGARWAL

Particulars
Loan Accepted

SWATI BOTHRA

VIDYA DEVI AGARWAL

AMIT PACKS PRIVATE LIMITED
KAUSHIK PRODUCTS
RD INDUSTRIES
SAPTHAGIRI PACKAGING

Directors :

Enterprises over which 
Directors

have significant influence
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KMP is Karta: 3.30 -                                               
Amit Agarwal HUF 3.30 -                                               

Director is a Karta: 2.40 -                                               
Alok Agarwal HUF 2.40 -                                               

Relatives Of Director Is Karta: 5.80 -                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal HUF 5.80 -                                               

7.50 -                                               
7.50 -                                               

2

70.00 7.00
Alok Agarwal -                                  7.00
Manish Bothra 70.00 -                                               

13.00 4.70
13.00 4.70

Relatives of Director: 10.00 -                                               
Ritu Agarwal 10.00 -                                               

3

Director : 229.57 155.19
Alok Agarwal 17.11 14.25
Ravi Agarwal 29.04 22.53
Manish Bothra 16.92 18.06
Manish Kumar Gupta 166.50 100.34

KMP : 15.72 10.03
Amit Agarwal 5.27 2.99
Nishant Bothra 0.90 0.90
Sidharth Agarwal 9.55 6.14

KMP Is Karta: 18.55 16.52
Amit Agarwal Huf 3.74 3.33
Nishant Bothra Huf 12.00 12.00
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 2.81 1.18

Director is Karta: 22.82 22.48
Alok Agarwal Huf 3.02 2.68
Manish Bothra Huf 16.20 16.20
Ravi Agarwal Huf 3.60 3.60

Relatives of Director: 119.21 91.44
Aarti Agarwal 2.94 1.25
Alka Gupta 33.27 25.46
Champa Bothra 17.71 15.95
Jyoti Bothra 6.39 4.63
Meera Gupta 13.01 13.01
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.83 0.83
Neha Agarwal 3.16 2.93
Nidhi Agarwal 3.28 1.74
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 12.35 10.23
Ritu Agarwal 10.33 5.56
Swati Bothra 5.19 3.43
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.73 1.73
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 9.04 4.70

Relative of Director is Karta: 28.03 25.51
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 6.05 5.36
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 4.95 4.95
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 17.04 15.20

19.57 12.25
Amit Packs Private Limited 8.27 8.49
Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 11.30 3.77

Director :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Amit Packs Private Limited

Loan Repaid

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Amit Packs Private Limited

Interest Expenses
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4 Interest Expenses Capitalised

KMP: 2.76 -                                               
Amit Agarwal 1.28 -                                               
Sidharth Agarwal 1.48 -                                               

Relative of Director: 17.36 -                                               
Alka Gupta 5.61 -                                               
Aarti Agarwal 0.74 -                                               
Champa Bothra 0.74 -                                               
Jyoti Bothra 0.74 -                                               
Neha Agarwal 0.74 -                                               
Nidhi Agarwal 0.74 -                                               
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 2.96 -                                               
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 1.40 -                                               
Ritu Agarwal 2.96 -                                               
Swati Bothra 0.74 -                                               

Director: 0.89 -                                               
Alok Agarwal 0.89 -                                               

3.70 -                                               
Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 3.70 -                                               

KMP is Karta: 0.95 -                                               
Amit Agarwal HUF 0.21 -                                               
Sidharth Agarwal HUF 0.74 -                                               

Director is Karta: 0.20 -                                               
Alok Agarwal HUF 0.20 -                                               

Relatives Of Director Is Karta: 1.18 -                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal HUF 0.44 -                                               
Nirmal kumar Bothra HUF 0.74 -                                               

4

KMP: 144.00 144.00
Amit Agarwal 48.00 48.00
Nishant Bothra 48.00 48.00
Sidharth Agarwal 48.00 48.00

Directors: 228.00 228.00
Alok Agarwal 48.00 48.00
Ravi Agarwal 48.00 48.00
Manish Bothra 48.00 48.00
Manish Kumar Gupta 84.00 84.00

5

(186.45)                           (119.66)                                        
(25.98)                             (36.61)                                          
(27.90)                             (17.36)                                          

(121.79)                           (62.91)                                          
(10.79)                             (2.79)                                            

47.15 25.67
2.49 4.78
9.85 2.51

12.17 14.18
22.64 4.20

6

173.65 54.15
48.65 54.15

Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 125.00 -                                               

Outstanding (receivable )/payable as at year end
Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Remuneration

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:

Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Loans outstanding at the year end

Amit Packs Private Limited
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Directors: 1576.82 1264.00
120.32 82.50
116.00 146.00

1145.00 854.00
195.50 181.50

Director Is Karta: 153.59 148.00
Alok Agarwal Huf 21.59 16.00
Manish Bothra Huf 108.00 108.00
Ravi Agarwal Huf 24.00 24.00

KMP: 124.22 48.50
Amit Agarwal 44.18 9.00
Nishant Bothra 6.00 6.00
Sidharth Agarwal 74.03 33.50

KMP Is Karta: 130.32 104.30
Amit Agarwal Huf 26.41 20.65
Nishant Bothra Huf 80.00 80.00
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 23.92 3.65

Relatives of Director: 928.69 435.00
Aarti Agarwal 24.81 4.54
Alka Gupta 263.66 101.25
Champa Bothra 123.27 103.00
Jyoti Bothra 47.77 27.50
Meera Gupta 86.71 86.71
Mohanlal Agarwal 5.50 5.50
Neha Agarwal 26.27 6.00
Nidhi Agarwal 27.07 6.80
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 92.21 53.70
Ritu Agarwal 80.18 9.00
Swati Bothra 39.77 19.50
Vidya Devi Agarwal 11.50 11.50
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 100.00 0.00

Relative of Director Is Karta: 195.21 162.70
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 43.44 31.20
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 33.00 33.00
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 118.77 98.50

7

20.94 -                                               
7.44 -                                               

Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 13.50 -                                               

Directors: 209.85 -                                               
18.64 -                                               
15.22 -                                               

149.85 -                                               
26.14 -                                               

Director Is Karta: 21.29 -                                               
Alok Agarwal Huf 3.47 -                                               
Manish Bothra Huf 14.58 -                                               
Ravi Agarwal Huf 3.24 -                                               

KMP: 24.23 -                                               
Amit Agarwal 9.43 -                                               
Nishant Bothra 0.81 -                                               
Sidharth Agarwal 13.99 -                                               

KMP Is Karta: 20.16 -                                               
Amit Agarwal Huf 4.13 -                                               
Nishant Bothra Huf 10.80 -                                               
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 5.23 -                                               

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Interest on loan outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal
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Relatives of Director: 163.34 -                                               
Aarti Agarwal 5.34 -                                               
Alka Gupta 51.26 -                                               
Champa Bothra 18.64 -                                               
Jyoti Bothra 8.45 -                                               
Meera Gupta 11.71 -                                               
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.74 -                                               
Neha Agarwal 5.54 -                                               
Nidhi Agarwal 5.65 -                                               
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 16.24 -                                               
Ritu Agarwal 20.04 -                                               
Swati Bothra 7.37 -                                               
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.55 -                                               
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 10.80 -                                               

Relative of Director Is Karta: 29.56 -                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 7.07 -                                               
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 4.46 -                                               
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 18.03 -                                               

8

3329.97 3555.40
808.13 1292.58
823.16 808.50
972.18 946.90
726.17 507.42

Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 0.34 -                                               

9

591.74 456.69
40.82 7.37

178.92 30.95
220.44 289.81
151.13 128.56

Qualipack Logistics Private Limited 0.43 -                                               
10 Rent Paid

31.89 17.64
Alka Gupta

-                                  4.41
Jyoti Bothra 5.32 2.21

7.63 4.41
4.63 4.41
5.32 2.21

Aarti Agarwal 6.00 -                                                
Ritu Agarwal 3.00 -                                                

10.63 -                                                
Singla Packaging 10.63 -                                               

Sapthagiri Packaging

Sales

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 

Swati Bothra

Singla Packaging

Relative of Director:

Neha Agarwal
Nidhi Agarwal

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging

Singla Packaging

Purchases

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
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Note: 50

[i] Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
    - change in financial assumptions                             5.13                         (3.77)

    - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)                             0.03                          0.44 

Benefits Paid
Present Value of Obligation as at the end

[ii] Change in Fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Income
Employer's Contributions
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end

[iii] Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Current Liability (Short term)
Non-Current Liability (Long term)
Present Value of Obligation

[iv] Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability / (Asset)
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

[v] Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year

Actuarial (gains) / losses
    - change in demographic assumptions
   - change in financial assumptions
   - experience Variance (i.e. ACTUAL experience vs 
assumptions. 0.03

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(vi) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :

Discount rate (per annum)

Salary growth rate (per annum)

(vii) Gratuity - As per actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2024

Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality rate

Normal retirement age
Attrition / Withdrawal rates (per annum)

5.13                                                             (3.77)

                                                             0.44 

15.00% 15.00%

100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

58 Years 58 Years

7.15% 7.30%
10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 

thereafter
10% for the first three years and 7% 

thereafter

Particulars As on
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Particulars As on
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

0.23                                                             (1.20)

5.39                                                             (4.53)

0.99 1.28

36.55 28.28

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

35.56 27.00

0.001
25.41 13.48
25.42 13.48

                                                              (0.23)                                                              1.20 

148.14 117.81

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

8.62 5.76
30.00 30.00

                                                              (8.07)                                                             (7.87)

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

117.81 88.73

                                                              (8.07)                                                             (7.87)
173.56 131.29

                                                            131.29                                                          108.45 
                                                                9.60                                                              7.04 
                                                              35.56                                                            27.00 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Employee benefit plans 
1. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump 
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 
30 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The Company 
manages the plan through a trust. The following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements:

Particulars
For the period ending

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
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(viii) Summary of Membership Status

Number of employees
Total monthly salary (Lakh)
Average past service (years)
Average age (years)
Average remaining working life (years)
Number of completed years valued
Expected remaining working life (years)

(ix) Sensitivity Analysis

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)                                                              (% 

change compared to base due to sensitivity)
 18,410,652             

6.5% 
16,279,009                                  

-5.8%
 13,969,050              

6.4% 
12,377,039                                         

-5.7%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)                                                                          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
16,279,636                                                                                                                                                                     

-5.8%
18,388,877                               

6.4%
12,376,583                                                                                                                                                    

-5.7%
13,953,995                                     

6.3%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
17,933,016                        

3.7%
16,666,345                                          

-3.6%
13,441,375         

2.4%
12,777,660          -

2.7%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
17,285,297                          

0.0%
17,286,356                                  

0.0%
13,128,862                   

0.0%
13,129,681                         

0.0%

Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2.  Defined contribution plans:

Particulars

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer below where assumptions for prior 
period, if applicable, are given.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined 
considering the general trend in inflation, senority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in 
employment market, etc.

Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death 
or disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

The assumptions used in this Report, other than the rates of mortality, are the expectations of the Company for future years. The Company 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consider the relevant factors (including historical trends, which may or may not be suitable for future 
projections or may be suitable only after certain adjustments / modifications) in determination of assumptions.

The Company has also been advised on the sensitivity of results to change in the chosen assumptions and experience variance / adjustments, 
Since it is the Company's prerogative to decide on expected future trends and since the Company is best aware of the various factors affecting the 
future trends, the assumptions given by the Company have been accepted.

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availabilty of 
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

                                                              28.30                                                            27.67 
                                                              1,540                                                            1,262 
                                                                5.88                                                              5.84 

31-Mar-23

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

107.61 65.66
                                                                3.26                                                              3.15 
                                                              29.72                                                            30.37 

A sum of Rs. 104.20 Lakhs has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of Company’s contribution to  provident fund and 
employees state insurance.

Particulars As on

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, 
the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate 
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants 
in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present 
value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to 
market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to 
the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to 
time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000).

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields / rates available on 
applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

Risk analysis

As on
31-Mar-24

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
                                                                 619                                                               401 
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Note: 51
 Financial instruments 

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Security Deposits 196.49                                          -                                                        196.49                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 7,887.97                                       -                                                        7,887.97                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.92                                            -                                                        15.92                                                      
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 44.12                                            -                                                        44.12                                                      
   iv) Other Financial Assets 48.32                                            -                                                        48.32                                                      

-                                                          
-                                                          

Total 8,192.81                                       -                                                        8,192.81                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 12,383.72                                     -                                                        12,383.72                                               
    ia) Lease Liabilities 32.84                                            -                                                        32.84                                                      
Current 
    i) Borrowings 6,505.38                                       -                                                        6,505.38                                                 
   ii) Trade Payables 4,180.91                                       -                                                        4,180.91                                                 
   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 23,103.66                                     -                                                        23,103.66                                               

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as follows :

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (iii) Security Deposits 144.80                                          -                                                        144.80                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 5,764.04                                       -                                                        5,764.04                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 148.03                                          -                                                        148.03                                                    
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 46.53                                            -                                                        46.53                                                      
   iv) Other Financial Assets 37.59                                            -                                                        37.59                                                      

-                                                          
-                                                          

Total 6,140.99                                       -                                                        6,140.99                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 8,315.82                                       -                                                        8,315.82                                                 
    ia) Lease Liabilities 30.75                                            -                                                        30.75                                                      
Current 
    i) Borrowings 4,759.05                                       -                                                        4,759.05                                                 
   ii) Trade Payables 3,240.85                                       -                                                        3,240.85                                                 
   iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 16,347.29                                     -                                                        16,347.29                                               

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Financial instruments by category
 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 are as follows : 

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g. loans and others),current financial assets (e.g., cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables, loans and others excluding other derivative assets) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables and other payables excluding derivative 
liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts.
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Note: 52
Financial Ratios 

Particulars Formula 2023-24 2022-23 Variance Reason for Variance
Curent Asset /
Current Liabilites
Debt/
Shareholders funds
(EBITDA-Taxes)/
Interest and Principle
Net Profit After tax
Average Shareholders Equity
Cost of Goods Sold
Average inventory
Turnover/
Average Trade receivable
Turnover/
Average Trade Payables
Turnover/
Average Working capital
Net profit/ 
Turnover
Net profit/
Average Capital Employed
Net Profit/
Average Total Investment

Reasons for the variances exceeding 25% has been given.

(k) Return on investment. 0.08 0.12 -36% NA

(j) Return on Capital employed, 0.08 0.12 -36% NA

(i) Net profit ratio, 0.05 0.05 -15% NA

(h) Net capital turnover ratio, 12.32 7.98 54% Reduction in average working capital and improvement in the turnover 
led to improvement in the ratio.

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio, 10.11 11.68 -13% NA

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, 5.50 6.21 -11% NA

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, 5.21 2.78 87% Reduction in average inventory and improvement in turnover led to 
improvement in the ratio.

(d) Return on Equity Ratio, 0.15 0.19 -19% NA

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 0.17 0.24 -28% Decrease in Debt service coverage ratio is on account of increase in 
borrowings during the year.

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, 1.58 1.25 27% Debt equity ratio has increased on account of increase in the borrowings 
during the year 

(a) Current Ratio, 1.14 1.51 -25% NA
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Note: 53

Note: 54
Other Statutory Information

e) The Company does not have any transaction with struck-off companies.

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Note: 55
Other discosures

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED As per our report of even date

for PARY & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007288C

MANISH BOTHRA           RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL RAKESH KUMAR JAIN
Director                               Director cum CFO              CEO Partner

 DIN: 07153582                    DIN: 00636684 Membership No : 106109
UDIN: 24106109BKHGYP4496

Place : Bangalore Place : Surat
Date : 30 May 2024 Date : 30 May 2024

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024

Regrouping & Reclassification
The previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate comparison with current year’s figures.

a) The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financials statements included under Property Plant and Equipment are held in the name 
of the company as at the balance sheet date.
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or intangible asset or both during the year.
c)The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 
property.
d) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during 
the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

a) As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022,  Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules 2022. The books of accounts along with other 
relevant records and papers of the companies are currently maintained in the electronic mode. These are readily accesible in india at all times and backup is 
maintained on servers located in india, on daily basis.

b) The disclosures under additional reporting requirements, which are not applicable to the company are not disclosed in the current year financial 
statements.

f) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the 
statutory period.

g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries), with the 
understanding that the intermediary shall;
   - Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries), or
   - Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

h) The Company does not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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